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Financial Highlights and Calendar
§A 5 WL 22 % BA 55 H b

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE
Year ended 31 March 2021 2020 Change
HE=A=+—HILFE —B=-—-F —EFTF 25
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FET B
Revenue ON 6,714,255 7,963,097 (15.7)
Profit attributable to equity holders RARRIEFRE A 359,130 73,634 387.7
of the Company FEAE R T
Total assets AEME 7,154,673 6,220,758 15.0
Net assets BEFE 3,034,836 2,671,312 13.6
Basic earnings per share FRREARE HK$0.62 /& T HK$0.13787T 376.9
Interim and final dividends per share B B R R AR B HK38 cents #fli  HK19 cents #ll 100.0
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$5.18 & T HK$4.56 87T 13.6

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Zl-i% E ET)

Announcement of Interim Results

26 November 2020

FERRE N B e & iy /AN =

Announcement of Annual Results 15 June 2021

PEEENM —E-—FATHH

Dividends Interim dividend: HK10 cents per share paid on 28 December 2020
%2 RHARR S, BR10EW  ERZZEFEF+ A=+ N\BIE[

Proposed final dividend: HK28 cents per share payable on 21 September 2021

=l -GS 2881 R=E=_—FNA=-+—RHIKkf
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") 6 September 2021
BREAFAE —ZE-—FNAANH

Closure of Register of Members
TiEpERM B &R

1 September 2021 to 6 September 2021 (both days inclusive)

(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

TR -FNA—RAEZZE—FhLANH(BEREMREEEA)
(AFETE B MR IRR AF R ERENER)

10 September 2021

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)
—T-—FhA+H

(VAT YRR BRI B Y B AR )
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Chairman’s Message

For the year ended 31 March 2021, | am pleased to report that the Group
achieved revenue of HK$6,714.3 million and delivered profit attributable
to shareholders of HK$359.1 million. The Group has cautiously managed
working capital to ensure healthy cash flow for its operations during these
uncertain times. With all the active steps taken, the Group maintained
positive operating cash flow for the year before government subsidies were
taken into account.

The continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year under
review presented a remarkable challenge to people, businesses and
economies around the globe. After a full year of operation in a post-
pandemic world, the Group has taken solid steps to protect our leadership
position in the market, and to capitalise on future growth opportunities.

IMMEDIATE ACTION, SUSTAINABLE STRATEGY

When it first became evident that the outbreak of COVID-19 was reaching
global proportions, the Group took immediate actions to ensure our
operations could continue uninterrupted. We protected the health and
safety of our customers and staff with enhanced hygiene measures, took
swift defensive action to control costs, and secured loan facilities to ensure
stable cash flow in a harsh environment.

With this safety net in place, we next turned our attention to making the
best of the situation — adapting to the new realities of social distancing
and changing consumer preferences. As a result, the Group began shifting
marketing and operational focus towards take-away and delivery options,
leveraging social media and other digital platforms to promote menus and
seasonal products redesigned for home dining.

Testament to the Group’s deep relationships with Hong Kong people from
all walks of life, enrolment in our Club 100 membership programme has
grown significantly due to the Group’s continued efforts in recent years
to address the changing demands of consumers who sought traditional
comfort food from reputable, trusted brands to ease the uncertainties
brought by COVID-19.
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The pandemic followed a different course in Mainland China, marked by
a more severe initial lockdown, followed by a shorter recovery period. The
Group took advantage of the situation to increase the pace of network
expansion, opening 13 new stores during the year with a strategic focus on
Guangzhou and Shenzhen — and currently has 17 stores in the pipeline to
open next year.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES FROM A
MARKET RESET

Over the past decade, Hong Kong’s economy has experienced tremendous
growth. Rents have increased multiple times and labour costs have also risen
accordingly, leading to unsustainable levels and an unbalanced market.

However, the prolonged nature of the pandemic is creating a new situation
—a "reset” of the economy — as health considerations, social distancing
regulations and international travel lockdowns have completely changed
the way people live, work and socialise. These significant changes have
impacted not only our home markets of Hong Kong and the Greater Bay
Area, but all around the world.

With international travel and global transport still severely limited, it appears
it will take some time before economic activity recovers. However, this
contraction is also opening the door for new and innovative pathways to
growth as rents and wages seek lower points of market equilibrium.

The Group’s immediate cost controls have kept the business cash flow
positive throughout this difficult year. As rental and labour costs fall further,
we have a unique opportunity to emerge from the pandemic with a lower
cost base than before — taking full advantage of this market reset.
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MANAGEMENT AND LEADERSHIP

With recent appointments, the key elements of our succession plan are in
place and the transition to the new management team is in its final stages.
I am pleased to announce that, effective 1 April 2021, Piony Leung Ho-ting
has been appointed as Managing Director (Hong Kong). In addition, we
have expanded the role of James Yang Bin, Managing Director (China), to
include responsibility for back office operations — consolidating resources
and streamlining the decision-making process. Both of them will report
directly to Peter Lo, Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

During the past year, this team have proven themselves under some of
the most challenging market conditions in recent memory. Their swift and
effective leadership not only protected our business and operations, but also
positioned the Group to take increased advantage of the eventual economic
recovery.

While the global reset has been a severe shock to the market, it has also
provided the Group with a valuable “stress test” of our long-term strategy,
business sustainability and overall competitiveness. | hold every confidence
that the management team will continue to hone our competitive edge in
the market.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Against this backdrop of uncertainty and changes, | must express my
deep gratitude to our Board of Directors, business partners, employees,
investors and customers for their continued support and steadfast loyalty.
As the everyday face of the Group, our frontline staff deserve the highest
praise for their courage during the pandemic, which allowed us to keep
our operations running smoothly and our communities fed despite the
enormously challenging environment.

Building on the strength of our reputation and the capabilities of our
management team, | am confident the Group will continue to thrive despite
the current challenges — consolidating its position as one of the best-loved
catering groups in the region.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2021
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Net Profit (HK$'m)

Business Highlights

B IR

Social distancing restrictions and poor consumer sentiment amidst
the COVID-19 pandemic had severe impact on the Group'’s business
and operations throughout the year. Revenue for the year declined to
HK$6,714.3 million (FY2019/20: HK$7,963.1 million). Profit attributable
to shareholders increased to HK$359.1 million (FY2019/20: HK$73.6
million) as a result of government pandemic relief and subsidies, as well
as the efforts of staff and management team under unprecedented
circumstances.

The Group received pandemic relief and subsidies from governments
totalling HK$638.9 million, including HK$486.8 million under the
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government, which
was used in its entirety for paying salaries and wages to employees.

The Group took immediate action to adapt product offerings and
operations to the “new normal”, implementing measures to improve
productivity and efficiency, including stringent cost control, manpower
deployment and acceleration of technology upgrades to capture more
takeaway and delivery business. These measures, combined with relaxed
social distancing restrictions, led to improved revenue in the second half
of the financial year.

Our business in Mainland China has recovered after the initial severe
lockdown. The Group will continue to expand its network in the Greater
Bay Area.

The Group cautiously managed working capital to maintain healthy cash
flow for operations during these uncertain times, and generated positive
operating cash flow for the year before government subsidies were
taken into account.

A final dividend of HK28 cents per share is recommended (FY2019/20:
nil), with a total dividend payout ratio of 62.0% for the year.

BEFRN  FEmAEBERERE &7
MR EEBEERS  BE
HEEBMWEKLEE SE2FRAR
LEETI4IEEBT(ZE—N/—ZTF
€ :7,963.1885L) - HRBUNAERE
RHEORE  UREB T —LREY
RIFTARA MR E - B R (G 5 F)38 %= 359.1
BEAL(ZE—N/=ZZFE: 73688
BIT) °
EEESTERELBTHEEBZBRED
ERREPALEIBIAEET  AEEE
BT R ETEI BB 486 8B EBTT © %
BB HAESL B THMN -

SERRPEERES REENERE [#F
Bl RSRIERRSEENREE 8
HEEBERIKA - B ANER - AR
RITFER - FMEZIHINEABLINE
HAR TG o B HERBUR MR R B
Bl SEBTFFHRAFZARE

FEANEEFERBENRHARETREZD
gmiE - SESE-THRANERNPIE
B -
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ERIRBERBREFI 28BN (= —H
“EFE E) 2FEREXAE62.0% °

Financial Performance — Net Profit & Earnings per Share
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CAFE DE CORAL

Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses
RREEBFEREMER

Mainland China Hong Kong
By it Quick Service Restaurant
EEERER

- .

1 80/0 630/0

Hong Kong Casual Dining
ERKEER

- (Sl
SUPER @
SANDWICHES
9%

Hong Kong Institutional Catering — Others
ERBERE Hity

sz,ﬁi<Wf' i 2%
8%

Revenue Distribution

DO

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z_—F=fA=+—RHItFE

250
Total #821: 201 III No of new shops (Since 1 April 2020) 29
200 DIEHE (BT -ZTFMA—
New shops
HoIE 4
Total Operating Units: 473 150 Total 428 121
BB (VA E Total #85: 91 — e <hops
(As of 31 March 2021) 10 Total #81: 60 p— New shops
(BE=Z=—-5=Z/A=+—H) N5 9
50 New shops
I 3
0
Hong Kong QSR Hong Kong Hong Kong Mainland
BEBERER Casual Dining Institutional China
EBREER Catering REIR
BEBEBRR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W i 2 o0

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and related social distancing
measures continued to impact the operations and business of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Against a backdrop of weak consumer sentiment, stringent government
restrictions imposed on the catering sector and multiple waves of the
pandemic, revenue for the year under review was HK$6,714.3 million,
representing a decline of 15.7% compared to FY2019/20.

Despite the unstable economic environment, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to shareholders of HK$359.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2021, as compared to that of HK$73.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2020, mainly due to government pandemic relief and subsidies, as
well as the concerted efforts of our management team and staff under the
extremely difficult environment.

During the year, the Group received pandemic relief and subsidies from the
Hong Kong and PRC governments totalling HK$638.9 million, which include
subsidies of HK$486.8 million under the Employment Support Scheme
("ESS") and other subsidies of HK$136.0 million under the Anti-epidemic
Fund of the Hong Kong Government. All ESS subsidies, which accounted
for approximately 23.3% of the Group’s staff cost in Hong Kong during the
period, were used for paying salaries and wages to our employees.

Though initially caught off-guard by the severity of the pandemic, the Group
swiftly took proactive measures to adjust operations and product offerings
to the “new normal”, and implemented strict actions to control operating
expenses and enhance productivity. We re-engineered menus for takeaway
and delivery sales, accelerated digitalisation of our business and expanded
our presence on online delivery platforms. These initiatives helped to
mitigate the impact of the pandemic, allowing the Group to not only break
even during FY2020/21, but to maintain positive operating cash flow for
the year before government subsidies were taken into account. Adaptation
of business operations and loosening of government pandemic restrictions
led to improvement in revenue during the second half of the financial year
compared to the first half.
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Amidst the serious business contraction brought by the pandemic, the
Group seized the opportunity to invest in future growth by launching
a series of long-term business and operation enhancement initiatives
on product development, marketing campaigns and staff training —
implemented in view of the breathing space made available by government
subsidies whilst paving the way for continued success in the post pandemic
world.

Although the Group's operations in Mainland China faced a more severe
initial lockdown period, the subsequent recovery period was relatively
quick. Taking advantage of the Group’s underlying financial strength and
confidence in the Greater Bay Area market, we took the opportunity to
continue network expansion with a focus on Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

The pandemic has caused a paradigm shift in the market. Adapting to
new strategic models and operations, the Group remains committed to
controlling overheads and improving efficiency while strengthening the
reputation and equity of its catering brands. Building on a solid foundation
in Hong Kong, we will continue to tap into significant growth opportunities
in the Greater Bay Area — creating sustainable value for our investors,
partners, customers and staff.
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R R R - BT BB RIRFIRME T
R RZER - ERMEHES —ERREXRE
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RESULTS OVERVIEW FEGE

Revenue A

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue decreased by #EZE_T_—F=A=+—HILFE  FEK

15.7% to HK$6,714.3 million (FY2019/20: HK$7,963.1 million). Revenue by ~ A 15.7% £6,7143BEEL(ZFT— N/

business division is set out below: —TFE 79631 BEBT) KEWAKE
BoEHFNAT -

FY2020/21 FY2019/20
—g-%/-—- Z—ZT—NH-F Change
FE FE =)
HKS$'m HK$’'m %
BHEET B & Bt
Hong Kong o
Quick Service Restaurants RRER 4,216.1 4,981.6 (15.4)
Casual Dining NEIE=S:/ 622.0 779.2 (20.2)
Institutional Catering HRESR 534.7 957.2 (44.1)
Others* HAth 141.4 155.1 (8.9)
Subtotal Nt 5,514.2 6,873.1 (19.8)
Mainland China B g dth 1,200.1 1,090.0 10.1
Group £E 6,714.3 7,963.1 (15.7)
*  Represents mainly income from food processing and distribution as well as rental income * FERBRRIMTIMAHARES KA
Gross Profit Margin ERZE

Gross profit margin decreased to 5.6% (FY2019/20: 9.2%), primarily due ~ EF X TH%E56% (ZFE— I _TFF:
to weak market sentiment and social distancing measures amidst the ~ 9.2%) * T EZRRFEMLZIB T HIZRAFE

COVID-19 pandemic. 55 & AMEZIEE a1t X EEREAR B o

Administrative Expenses THEH

Administrative expenses decreased by 3.9% to HK$462.6 million fTIHE AR 3.9%F4626B8&BTL(-F

(FY2019/20: HK$481.4 million), mainly due to cost control. —N/—EFE 481 4FEBT) TEHRV
BAR TR o
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Key Costs

The breakdown of major expenses is set out below:

ESE-JIDIN
EEHZHIIMT :

For the year ended 31 March

BZ=A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’'m % of revenue HK$’'m % of revenue

BEET WAEEE (%) BT WAMELE (%)

Cost of raw materials [EE K B EE R AR 2,008.1 29.9 2,258.2 28.4

and packing

Staff cost AT 2,366.1 35.2 2,696.4 33.9
Rental costs* FHE A * 855.7 12.7 1,045.0 13.1

* It includes rental related depreciation in right-of-use assets and finance costs of lease liabilities, as
well as rental costs of short-term lease and low-value leases. It also includes turnover rent as well
as gain on modification and termination of leases.

Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, Net

Other income and other losses, net increased to HK$561.0 million
(FY2019/20: net losses of HK$40.5 million), due to subsidies totalling
HK$638.9 million granted by the Hong Kong Government under the Anti-
epidemic Fund and the PRC Government (FY2019/20: HK$60.3 million),
netting off against an impairment loss of right-of-use assets of HK$23.7
million (FY2019/20: HK$40.6 million).

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense decreased by 24.8% to HK$30.0 million (FY2019/20:
HK$39.9 million).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
The Group’s profit attributable to equity holders increased 387.7% to

HK$359.1 million (FY2019/20: HK$73.6 million) attributable to government
monetary relief of HK$638.9 million.
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Segment Results

Hong Kong segment results increased 37.2% to HK$674.2 million
(FY2019/20: HK$491.5 million) attributable to government monetary relief.
Mainland China results increased 93.3% to HK$149.4 million (FY2019/20:
HK$77.3 million) attributable to business recovery after the initial severe
lockdown due to outbreak of pandemic and Renminbi appreciation.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group's basic earnings per share increased by 376.9% to HK$0.62
(FY2019/20: HK$0.13).

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK28 cents per share (FY2019/20: nil). Together with the interim dividend
of HK10 cents per share paid during the year, the dividend payout ratio for
the year is 62.0%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As of 31 March 2021, the Group had a network of 352 stores in Hong
Kong (31 March 2020: 356) and 121 stores in Mainland China (31 March
2020: 114).

Hong Kong Retail Operations

COVID-19 Impact

In the face of unprecedented challenges brought by COVID-19, Hong
Kong's dining sector faced various government-mandated restrictions
throughout the year. These included no in-house dining after 18:00, limiting
seating capacity by half, imposing a 1.5m minimum distance between seats,
safety shields between tables and temperature checks, as well as limiting
the number of diners per table. On 28-29 July 2020, in-house dining was
completely banned at all catering outlets in Hong Kong. Together, these
restrictions barred dinner service for 114 days in FY2020/21, in addition to 9
days that we voluntarily suspended. These regulations severely impacted the
Group’s business and operations, with a significant decline in the number of
meals served in-house at retail outlets.
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In light of the changing operating environment, the Group took swift action
to adapt to new consumer preferences while enhancing hygiene standards.
We reallocated manpower due to huge takeaway meal demand during
lunch and dinner hours, and also provided additional training regarding
standard operating procedures for takeaway packaging and order fulfilment
time. We also implemented the “LeaveHomeSafe” QR code at all shops,
consolidated all COVID-19 preventive measures into standardised guidelines,
and conducted regular disinfections as well as nano-photocatalyst
sanitization at all shops.

The launch of additional ordering platforms, mobile ordering apps and
QR code ordering for takeaway/pre-orders, as well as closer collaboration
with third party food delivery service providers, helped to maintain market
share and sales revenue as the market settled into the new rhythm of
post pandemic life. The Group also placed vigorous emphasis on VIP and
membership programmes, making use of these platforms to build closer
relationships, strengthen brand loyalty and communicate directly with
customers.

As a result of these actions, takeaway sales accounted for a considerably
greater proportion of revenue during FY2020/21 as compared to the
previous year — a sign of significant changes in consumer preferences, as
well as the Group’s ability to adapt to the market.

Quick Service Restaurants (QSR)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue from the QSR division
decreased by 15.4% to HK$4,216.1 million, as Café de Coral fast food and
Super Super Congee & Noodles experienced declines in revenue, as well
as negative same store sales growth of 14% and 11%, respectively, for the
year under review. The business quickly responded to the challenges of the
year, taking initiative to protect margins through a shift in marketing focus,
accelerated digitalisation and tight control of costs.

The Group's shift in marketing focus to takeaway and delivery menus was
accompanied by a large-scale joint promotion with Octopus Cards and
other electronic payment gateways to stimulate use of electronic payment.
By adopting new innovations in technology including ordering kiosks, KVS
(kitchen video system) and mobile pre-ordering apps, the business was able
to increase consumer convenience while minimising interpersonal contact
for takeaway service.
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This shift was also facilitated by the development of express takeaway
menus for lunch and dinner service, as well as popular individual and family
meal offers, including a “HK$38 for one dish, HK$70 for 2 dishes and
HK$100 for 3 dishes” promotion. QSR also increased traffic with everyday
low prices, as well as ad hoc limited special offers for lunch, tea and early
bird dinner takeaway orders. A “Thanksgiving” HK$300 coupon campaign
was launched as a special promotion during the severe second wave of the
pandemic, and received overwhelming response.

Our new eatCDC.com online ordering platform was launched in September
2020, driving strong response to seasonal festive products such as Winter
Festival and Chinese New Year poon choi offerings, Chinese New Year
cakes and Mid-Autumn Festival mooncakes. Reflecting changing consumer
behaviour, a significant percentage of festive product sales were conducted
through online platforms rather than in-store. Partnering with third party
delivery platforms like foodpanda helped the Group capture significant
opportunities in takeaway and delivery business.

Assisting this transition to a more digitally-enabled business model, we
hired dedicated staff under our Service Ambassador Programme to teach
customers how to use new technology channels, such as in-store kiosks
and mobile pre-ordering apps. In order to maintain our high standards
of consistent food quality and overall hygiene in line with consumer
expectations, the Group also enhanced its emphasis on Quality, Service and
Cleanliness by redoubling efforts in our Mystery Shopper Programme at our
retail outlets.

Uncertain economic conditions have driven consumers to look for value-
oriented offerings from trusted brands, which has benefited our Club
100 membership programme. Despite the pandemic, we have increased
our rewards to existing members and proactively recruited new members
through apps and special redemption programmes. As a result of the
Group's efforts recent years, we have doubled our membership and
strengthened engagement with our customers.

The business also implemented strict cost control measures, while
re-engineering and simplifying menus to maintain food costs at a steady
level. Despite the dip in sales revenue, Café de Coral fast food was able to
increase store productivity, which helped to offset overall costs — especially in
manpower.
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Some of our landlords, especially the Hong Kong Housing Authority and
Hong Kong Housing Society, granted temporary rental concessions to
the Group during the year. The Group continues to discuss with landlords
for more favourable leasing terms, with a view to improving the Group’s
operating costs amidst the challenging business environment.

During the year under review, Café de Coral fast food opened 4 new
outlets and operated a network of 161 shops at year end (31 March 2020:
162). The number of stores operated by Super Super Congee & Noodles
as at year end was 40 (31 March 2020: 45). Currently 11 QSR-brand shops
have been scheduled to open during FY2021/22.

Casual Dining

Revenue from the Casual Dining business (including Chinese cuisine brands
Shanghai Lao Lao and Mixian Sense, and western cuisine brands The
Spaghetti House and Oliver's Super Sandwiches) decreased by 20.2%
during the year under review to HK$622.0 million (FY2019/20: HK$779.2
million), affected by the pandemic and related restrictions on dining.

In order to stimulate customer traffic and sales volume, the business
introduced “value based” menus across all brands — such as takeaway
dinner meal sets and a “Grab n Go"” range for extra convenience. VIP
programmes drove customer engagement with newly introduced apps,
providing a direct communication channel with customers for special offers
and enhanced customer relationship management. Additional ordering
platforms — such as QR code ordering — helped to drive a pronounced
increase in walk-in takeaway sales across all Casual Dining brands. Closer
collaboration with third party food delivery services like Deliveroo also
helped to capture more delivery business.

The division operated 60 shops at the end of the period under review (31
March 2020: 62). Shanghai Lao Lao and Mixian Sense operated 13 and
19 shops as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: 13 and 20, respectively).
The Spaghetti House opened 1 new shop during the period and operated
8 shops at the end of the period (31 March 2020: 8). With 2 shops opened
during the reporting period, Oliver's Super Sandwiches operated 17
shops as of the financial year end (31 March 2020: 16).
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Institutional Catering

The Group’s Institutional Catering business continued to be severely
impacted by the pandemic as school closures continued, hospital catering
and other institutional services were suspended, and global aviation
remained at minimal levels. Revenue from the business dropped by 44.1%
during the year under review to HK$534.7 million (FY2019/20: HK$957.2
million).

However, as competition thinned due to the pandemic, the Group was able
to successfully renew and extend major contracts as other players exited the
market. Asia Pacific Catering successfully negotiated a number of new
contracts, ending the year with 91 operating units (31 March 2020: 87).
Luncheon Star took advantage of the lower business volume to expand
its production facilities and automate processes for enhanced hygiene and
safety.

Even though the Group’s Institutional Catering business was severely
impacted by the pandemic, it remains by far the market leader in Hong
Kong — and a preferred strategic partner in the education, medical and
institutional sector. We believe the current consolidation in the market
is a prime opportunity for the Group to further build its reputation and
capabilities, which will allow us to accelerate business growth once the
COVID-19 situation is under control.

Mainland China

Revenue from Mainland China operations grew by 10.1% to HK$1,200.1
million (FY2019/20: HK$1,090.0 million). The South China fast food
business recorded a 9.3% increase in revenue to RMB1,007.1 million, with
same store sales growth of 2%.

In Mainland China, the initial outbreak of the pandemic resulted in more
severe social restrictions, but the economy also rebounded more quickly as
a result. From a sharp and steep decline in year-on-year sales in February,
the Group was able to significantly narrow the gap by May 2020 — and to
remain ahead of average industry growth in Guangdong Province.
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Although the pandemic impacted the Group’s business in transportation
hubs and during dinner service, we experienced a significant increase in
Online-to-Offline (020) sales as a result of deliberate marketing efforts
to drive takeaway and delivery options, and a focus on signature hero
products. We also accelerated digitalisation efforts such as electronic
e-coupon marketing to improve productivity and address changing
consumer preferences.

The business worked diligently to control costs through menu management
and strategic sourcing as well as manpower expenses. Close negotiations
with landlords and other strategic partners allowed the Group to obtain
appreciable concessions in rent. The business also benefitted from a series
of social welfare and support measures provided by the government.
We continue to focus on efficiency through managing labour costs and
resources in order to drive operational costs lower.

We believe this period of industry consolidation provides an attractive
opportunity for larger-scale caterers to strengthen their competitive
positions. Therefore despite the pandemic, the Group's long-term network
expansion plans remain unchanged. We opened 13 new stores in Mainland
China during the year under review, with a strategic focus on Guangzhou
and Shenzhen, ending the year with 121 stores (31 March 2020: 114). The
South China fast food business currently has 17 stores in the pipeline to
open in FY2021/22.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

During the year under review, the Group’s financial position remained
healthy. We cautiously managed working capital during these uncertain
times, allowing the Group to maintain positive operating cash flow for the
year before government subsidies were taken into account. The Group also
secured additional banking facilities during the year to ensure sufficient
reserves of working capital.
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As of 31 March 2021, the Group recorded cash of approximately HK$2,073
million, with HK$888 million in available banking facilities. The Group’s
current ratio as of the same date was 1.5 (31 March 2020: 0.5), and the
cash ratio was 1.2 (31 March 2020: 0.2). The Group had borrowings of
HK$1,179 million (31 March 2020: nil) and a nil gearing ratio (ratio of total
borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity) (31 March 2020:
nil).

The Group’s return on equity for FY2020/21 was 12% (FY2019/20: 3%),
and return on assets was 5% (FY2019/20: 1%)).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group’s capital expenditure (excluding
right-of-use assets) was HK$257 million (FY2019/20: HK$487 million). As
at 31 March 2021, the Group’s outstanding capital commitments were
HK$735 million (31 March 2020: HK$449 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2021, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$2,229 million (31 March 2020: HK$945 million) to financial institutions
in connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The Group
had no charge on assets as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.

24 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

HE_ZT-—F=-A=+—8 £EKREFH
®#2,07388% T - AIBARITEERER888
BEET SERFABNRBLEAR15(ZF
“EF=ZA=+—H8:05)  BEethEXRAE12
TE-ZTFZAZ+—H:02) - EENE
BERBINEEAL(ZEZEF=A=+—
H:&) BELX(EFREBERRRERAS
FEIEAREEREL) RE(ZZETF=A
=+—8:#&)-

EENRALBRRE T -/~ —FEAL
12%(_?—ﬂ/_?ir§zr 3%) » BERR
KE5% (ZT—N/—TFE 1%) °

BB AR
EEREBEFEANERRAY (MERFERER
E)RXTEBAEL(ZE—N/ZZFE
A87BEBEL) BE_T-_—F=A=+—
H  SEERITEMNERNERERTISBESET
(ZE-ZF=A=1+—H :4498EHFT) °

RAREE

RZEZ—F=RA=+—0  KNRAmPEHE
BIREEREANB AR ZEEEN22298588
BT(ZE_ZEF=A=1+—H:94588%
L) c EER T —F=A=+—HILEER
BE(CE-ZEF=-A=+—8: D) o

KR ET

ﬂ%%[&@*%@%%%%ii%%%ﬁ%
BT ER B 2 I B R 5
4o SNERELARHEBBREARSR - AR
MERERFES - TR EERNEE -



AREEEARAF 202021 F3F 25



HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2021, the Group had a workforce of 18,109 employees
(31 March 2020: 18,832). During the year under review, we maintained
recruitment and hiring to build and equip the team for business and
operations during and after the pandemic, and also retrained employees to
support new channels and strategies.

Effective leadership and talent development are critical to the Group’s
ongoing success. Training continued to focus on developing staff at levels
through initiatives including the Continuous Leadership Development
programme, customer service and product quality training — with a
particular focus on enhanced safety and hygiene measures to combat the
pandemic.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled to
participate in profit sharing bonus and performance incentive programmes,
as well as share award and share option schemes.

SUSTAINABILITY

Under the pandemic, environmental, social and corporate governance (ESG)
initiatives have come to the forefront as businesses and communities work
together in mutual support. The Group is strongly committed to supporting
the global agenda on sustainable development. By making ESG initiatives
an integral part of our strategy and operations, we are putting sustainability
into practice — and achieving tangible benefits in overall business
competitiveness.

The Group has been a constituent member of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index since 2015.

During the reporting year, we refined our sustainability strategy to broaden
our vision and consolidate our efforts — starting with a review of our
stakeholder groups and their priorities; followed by analysis and prioritisation
of engagement and communication channels; and finally, alignment of the
Group’s sustainability strategy with stakeholders’ expectations and industry
best practice.
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With our renewed strategy in place, the Group’s ESG efforts during the year
centred around immediate pandemic relief, as well as long-term community
support. As part of our “Cheer YOU up” Community Support Programme,
we made use of Luncheon Star's production lines to produce and donate
over 220,000 hot meals to feed the elderly, disabled and disadvantaged.
In light of social distancing regulations, the Group modified its Community
Spring Feast 2021 by delivering 2,000 sets of “Nutri-rich” poon choi to the
elderly, low-income families, disabled people and those severely affected
by the pandemic. We also continued to support Guangzhou Huiling, a
charitable organisation that aims to ensure intellectually disabled individuals
are able to participate in the community.

Full details of our sustainability programmes can be found in the Group’s
Sustainability Report 2020/21.

OUTLOOK

Although the economic outlook remains uncertain due to the global health
situation, the Group remains cautiously optimistic in its ability to leverage its
market leadership position to drive additional synergies amongst business
units. In this environment, cost-conscious consumers are seeking value-
focused meals offered by reliable caterers with a focus on quality and
consistency. With a strong portfolio of brands catering across QSR, Casual
Dining and Institutional Catering, the Group remains confident in its ability
to offer a wide range of food options that cater to the diverse needs of the
community.

During the past year under the pandemic, the Group has seen positive
results from investments in digitalisation such as mobile ordering apps, self-
ordering kiosks, digital CRM programme and our own eatCDC.com online
platform, as well as collaboration with third party food delivery services.
We will continue to enhance these efforts with touch-free solutions at
express takeaway counters, as well as electronic vouchers and other digital
promotions. By successfully and continuously adapting to the new market
environment, the Group has an opportunity to demonstrate its leadership in
both the industry and the community.
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The Group's business performance improved and revenue rebounded in
the second half of the year as compared to the first half. As the pandemic
situation resolves, the Group expects business performance to make
progress along with the economy. The Group will continue to implement
stringent cost control measures on operations to protect margins as we
navigate through the pandemic. While we are actively negotiating rental
concessions and more favourable leasing terms, we are confident in creating
stronger strategic alliance and partnership with landlords to capture market
opportunities and prime locations by leveraging our brand portfolios and
financial position.

As the Mainland China market was able to control the severity of the
COVID-19 pandemic, domestic consumption is expected to rebound at a
faster rate. Taking advantage of this opportunity, the Group will actively seek
to penetrate residential areas in Tier 1 cities, while expanding our presence
in Tier 2 and 3 cities.

As a result of the pandemic, the industry has faced a severe shock and many
weaker players have already exited the market. Those that remain are lean,
fit and aggressive; and we anticipate a sharply competitive environment in
the year ahead.

However, the Group has proven the strength of its management team,
brand portfolio, customer relationships and financial standing in the face
of severe challenges this past year. With streamlined, digitalised operations
and a firm control on costs, we are well positioned to thrive in the current
economy — and to take full advantage of the post-pandemic recovery.
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Directors and Senior Management

H
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 65, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of
whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Ardley Enterprises
(PTC) Limited and Victor Reach Investments Limited, each of which has
discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 68, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has
been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period
from September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as a
Non-executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April 2019
and is currently a Non-executive Director. Ms Lo has more than 35 years of
experience in the fast food industry. She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 69, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an
Adjunct Professor of The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of
Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup
Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of
the Company.

30 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

BRI EE - ST N5 R—ANAEFEMAK
EBYR—NN\NFEZEAERRES - R
EER—NNANFE—NNEFEEITHREER
HEAEE  FH-NNEFEZT—ZFH
TRTEE - BR_ZE——FWAATEIEH
TESE VYH-_E——EmNAE_ZT—~E=
RAEERRRER - REERABFWNEBE 2K
B -REARERERNERBRTEETERSE
EWMREIRD - HERZ 2 EEREINREEL
BoREERBMNMEASEABRELE KK
RBBEN R MMAREELEN  WREIHE
BEBIE T BN REEER AR EER Lk

8o

REERBAEMHEGRETR BEHIKER
B eBRERANBEBEERBRFEHI -

PREFETEAGRBE DN E] [ BEEEES
HERE | [RFEREHERRE] - [HY
EE4E| - BERKEBeta Gamma Sigma &
[ZK BRI | ZFREK o

RELRMRENEBERAR - BAHBIER
BRAR -~ HinBIRE (BFR) BRAR - /K
FHEEERARLBRBEEEBRARZ
BYFATES  UANBEBEERERARIZIFE
WITES ZFRRZBNEOREEHARS
PRAR AR ER LM

BAEAEDAATEERBE AL BEE
T BEAEERBAAEEZEE -



Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 67, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael, BBS, JP, aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr Choi is a Director and Senior Vice-President
of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. He has been in the real
estate industry for over 40 years with extensive knowledge and experience
in the real estate markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently, he
is the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a Board
Director and a member of Non-subvented Service Governing Committee
of Haven of Hope Christian Service. Mr Choi graduated from the Business
Management Department of the Hong Kong Baptist College and obtained
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University of East
Asia, Macau.

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Family Office
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital
markets. He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
and an independent non-executive director of Kowloon Development
Company Limited and Pokfulam Development Company Limited. The
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science
in Civil Engineering from Brown University.
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 65, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan (“KYC"), Solicitors. Prior to founding KYC, he worked
in a number of international law firms, including Baker & McKenzie,
Simmons & Simmons (Partner), Andersen Legal (Managing Partner, Greater
China), Mallesons Stephen Jaques (Managing Partner, Mainland China and
Hong Kong) and King & Wood Mallesons (Managing Partner, Asia Strategy
& Markets). Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia
with combined Degrees in accounting/economics and laws respectively
as well as a Master’s Degree in laws. He also obtained the Advanced
Management Program diploma from the Harvard Business School. He is
qualified to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, England and
Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
England and Wales and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr Kwok
has served regularly on Government boards and committees. Previously,
he was Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee, Chairman of
the Independent Police Complaints Council, Convenor of the Disciplinary
Appeals Committee of the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee,
Chairman of the Appeal Board of the Criminal & Law Enforcement Injuries
Compensation Boards, Vice-Chairman of the Consumer Council and
Deputy Chairman of the Appeal Board under the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 70, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since January 2013 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr Au is the Special Advisor of BDO
Limited, the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited. He has
more than 40 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au
was the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Mr Au is currently an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of AAC Technologies Holdings Inc., the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined
the Group in 1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2015 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since April 2016.
Mr Lo has performed key functions within the Group and led various major
projects for the growth and development of the Group’s business and
operations. As the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr Lo leads the
overall management and strategic planning and development of the Group’s
businesses and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic
Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University of Technology,
a Master's Degree in Medical Physics from the University of Surrey, a
Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of London and an
Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director and a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Nomination Committee. He also serves as a director
of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director
of the Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director
in March 2016. Mr Lo is in charge of property and branch development,
project and facilities management, quantity surveying and business analysis
of the Group. He had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager
(Food Manufacturing) of the Group during the period from November
2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts, specialist in
Economics from University of Toronto and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 50, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Managing Director (Hong Kong) of the Group. She also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Leung is responsible
for managing and developing the Group’s catering business in Hong Kong,
namely, quick service restaurants, casual dining as well as institutional
catering (including school catering). She has over 25 years of experience in
retail and fast-moving consumer goods industries across Asia Pacific region.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms Leung held senior management positions
with leading multinational corporations with extensive experience in general
management, brand marketing as well as strategic business development.
Ms Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts from The University of Hong
Kong.
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Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 50, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (China) of the Group. He also serves as a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible for
strategic planning, business operation and market development of the
Group’s catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He has over
20 years of rich management experience gained from various international
corporations where he was responsible for leading corporate strategic
business development, formulating operation direction and expanding
business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Kellogg Business School, Northwestern University and
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr Lam Ming Fung, David, aged 52, joined the Group in April 2015 and
is the Senior General Manager (Casual Dining) of the Group. He also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lam is responsible
for leading the overall management and development of the casual
dining business in Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in business
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lam had worked for renowned
organisation and international retail group responsible for strategic business
development, operation management, marketing and product development
and customer management. He holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from University of Leicester.

Mr Ng Tsz Chiu, Ivan, aged 50, joined the Group in October 2013 and is
the General Manager (Supply Chain) of the Group. Mr Ng is responsible for
management and development of strategic procurement and supply chain
of the Group's operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as
overseeing the operations of the Group’s central food processing centres. He
has extensive experience in procurement management and has worked for
leading retail and international product distribution groups where he was
responsible for various strategic commercial and technical procurements.
Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business from Queensland University of
Technology in Australia.
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Mr Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 57, joined the Group in January 2011 as
Chief Financial Officer. He also serves as a director of most subsidiaries of
the Company. With extensive experience in general management, corporate
finance and financial control all gained from top management positions
held in renowned corporations and firms, Mr Lim is responsible for the
overall oversight of the Group’s financial planning and strategy as well as
headquarters management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lim held various
general management positions and directorships in listed and private
conglomerates with operations spanning key international markets since
1990. Mr Lim holds an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
AR E B TR

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
Stakeholders
BRREFGE

Board & Board
Committees
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate

governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they
are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework are set
out in this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the Company’s
Annual Report 2020/21.

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and
senior management.
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The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a view
to enhancing the Board's effectiveness and corporate governance. The
last Board evaluation was conducted in 2018 and assisted by an external
professional advisor, with areas of improvement identified and implemented
to strengthen the Board’s operations, including extra focus on corporate
vision and strategy, management succession plan, Directors’ involvement, as
well as better collaboration and communication with management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by
the Board (the “Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board's
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors under the guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
has assessed the independence of each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors during the year and considered them still to be independent,
taking into account criteria including, expression of objective view, provision
of independent advice and guidance, exercise of independent judgement,
as well as possession of required character, integrity, perspective, skills and
experience to fulfil the role of an independent director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the Board
Diversity Policy on a regular basis, make recommendations on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor
the progress on achieving the objectives.

In the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee considered the current structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board appropriate for leading the Group’s development,
and stability thereof is crucial for the Board and the Group’s success in
particular under the extremely challenging operating environment during
the reporting year.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
Nomination to the Board shall be based on merit and consideration of
objective selection criteria developed by the Nomination Committee in light
of the needs and desires of the Board as well as the Company’s business
and strategies. Selected individuals shall be evaluated against the desired
criteria with consideration of the following factors:

skills and knowledge

o related business/financial acumen and experience

o leadership and communication capabilities

o cultural background and personality

o integrity and reputation

o other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies
and public organisations

o independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable
for appointment of independent non-executive directors)

o other attributes and strengths, as appropriate

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy is subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-
election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations, business
and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the
responsibilities as a director under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates
and presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes
to the statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and
briefing sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with
the Group's business and operation as well as developments of regulatory
and compliance requirements. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous improvement programmes held by external bodies at the
expense of the Company.
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All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record ~ FTBZE S A T BRI AR AR EFE S 2 57148
on a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set &% o FFRNEBIEF I EEBEH 0T ¢
out below:

Directors 55 Training Areas Mt
1 g ()

Non-executive Directors FEWTES

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) BFEYTE (FE) a, b, f

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEBTL a,b,f

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FRIA e 5o a,b,cdef

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFREES A a, b, f

Independent Non-executive Directors B IERMITES

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael FOEREE a,b,f

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEENLAE a,b,cdefg

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry EllS e a b, e f

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert & MR A a, b, f

Executive Directors HITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer) REREE (BEHTE) a,b,def

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan EAAIGE a, b, f

Note:  Training relating to (a) business development update of the Group; (b) business environment/ M3 FBIABRSR@QAEBMESSZIERE  b)EERE
management; (c) corporate governance/risk management; (d) Environmental, Social and BIE G (QREER/TARER (RSB HERER
Governance Reporting; (e) legal or regulatory update; (f) banking/accounting/financial WE G ()EBREEEMER  (WRTT &5t W5
reporting/taxation; and (g) information technology ®es B () AEHE

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EERKREEE

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as wellas ~ EEZRERHINEETRH2BERE N - URKE
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board, 2 EBEEREFF BEENNTEHBEERZAG
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board. REAE -
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The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

e Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budget of the
Group;

° Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

e Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

o Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports; and

e Appointment or removal of external auditor.

The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board
is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include all the
Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior
executives of the Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and
agreed by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions are given
as to the limits of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report to the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews
its delegation of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to
time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and
its business. Principal functions that are delegated to the Management
Board include the following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;
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e Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within the
limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning of
executives; and

o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient
and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director
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The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing at least
annually the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board with due regard of diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

e The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy;

o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors;

o Re-election of Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 September 2020;

o Succession plan of senior executives; and

e Appropriate timeline and approach for the next Board evaluation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following four
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
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The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and
performance of the individuals as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to align with the long-
term interest of the Company with significant proportion of remuneration
linked to corporate and individual performance.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

° Remuneration package of Executive Directors and senior management
based on individual performance appraisal;

o Share award proposal under the Company’s Share Award Scheme;
and

o Management's work plan regarding a structural review of the
Company’s long-term incentive plan in light of the Remuneration
Committee’s recommendation.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following five Directors with
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate
governance functions.
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48

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Independence of the external auditor and engagement of external
auditor;

o External auditor’s remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services;

e Audit findings by external auditor and related management responses,
as well as development in accounting standards and its effects on the
Group;

e Annual and interim results announcements and financial statements;
o Internal audit plan, risk management and internal control performance,
as well as effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and

internal control systems;

o Corporate governance practices and policies, compliance with CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

o Internal audit proposal relating to the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance reporting;

e The Group’s connected transaction and annual review of the Group’s
continuing connected transactions;

o Renewal of Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy; and

o Adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting as well as internal audit functions.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the

external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings and
arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda.
For special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are
given.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.
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During the year, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals. Directors’ attendance of the Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other meetings
delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set

FA - EFZRBTTORAEHEHR (WEFHET
—R) FEERBE_T-_—F=A=+—H
TFEERTZEEReH EERETZES

% BREAFAGRHEGESRRESRHL

out below: EFEACERE ST
Number of meetings attended/held during the year
ERLR/ BRZEERY
Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Group General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=R RE¥ZEE FHzEe ENZEE RESRIMA RRAE
L EE S g3 g3 Ag
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BRAEE 4/4 22 N/A T N/A TNEF 11 11
(Chairman) ()
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BREBLT 4/4 N/A NEF N/A NE A N/A N n 1"
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Bt LE 4/4 N/A TEF 212 N/A i 17 1"
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRELE 44 N/A RN N/A N 33 1 1
Independent Non-executive Directors B JE{TE %
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael BERKE 4/4 212 212 33 N/A @A 0N
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey THERE 3/4 212 22 33 N/A N Ef 11
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry PR 4/4 22 22 33 N/A NEf 01
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEHLE 4/4 N/A EF N/A TNEF 33 N/A @A n
Executive Directors HTES
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter REELE 4/4 N/A TNEF N/A NE A N/A N 1 1
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTE)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BARSEE 4/4 22 N/A T N/A TNEF 11 11
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group’s
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2020/21.

The Company has adopted a policy on engagement of external auditor for
non-audit services. The external auditor may provide non-audit services to
the Group as permitted under the policy provided that the external auditor’s
independence of audit work shall not be impaired. The Audit Committee
reviews the nature, size and proportion of non-audit service fees as to the
total service fees of the external auditor on an annual basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Type of services IRISERE e ERER
HK$'000

FET

Audit services Z AR 3,438
Non-audit services* IERZEURTS * 531
Total 4t 3,969

*  Include mainly advisory services on taxation
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfillment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board’s
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features — the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group's risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM”) policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
BER

1st Line of Defense: 2nd Line of Defense:

Risk Content and Accountability

F—ERAR B
BERARRBE EBREREE

Department and operation heads
HFREETE HERHTEFAENERER

— Day-to-day management control -
and internal control measures
H®EREE R AP EEIT IR

[ A RS
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Risk Process and Accountability

Risk and compliance oversight
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system.

The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant,
is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk
management and internal control.

Risk Management Process — The Group's ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The risks
are categorised into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks. The key process of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below:

Risk Identification
2 B Bl

at least annually
SO BFHBEERR EERR
Annual Review

FERE

Conduct annual review on the
effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems
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Strategic and

Bl Operational
, Objectives
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Risk Reporting
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Submit risk monitoring and

Identify potential risks of key processes
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Risk Assessment
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Risk Response

R

Evaluate and prioritise the risks
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management reports on a regular basis
EHREREREEREERE

Risk Monitoring
[ B BE 42

Define risk indicators and set acceptable
indicator levels for monitoring the
significant risks identified
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Formulate risk mitigation plan for the
significant risks identified
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly and
regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and Audit
Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks identified,
managed and monitored during the year included food safety, supply chain
management, project management, marketing as well as research and
development. Action plans were formulated and implemented during the
year to address the areas of concern effectively.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2021. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads of
key business units and functional departments are required to confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the Management Board on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place
to provide guidance to our employees and business partners who may,
from time to time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence
and to ensure that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the
knowledge that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be
investigated appropriately and regarded as confidential.
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Under the Group's Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation,
employees and business partners may raise their concern by sending their
malpractice reports to the Head of Internal Audit who reports directly to the
Audit Committee on receipt and investigation of malpractice reports. For
malpractice reports concerning any member of the Management Board,
informants may make direct reports to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Group's Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines
and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure
Team comprising Executive Directors and members of senior management
have the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
the confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on Shareholders’ investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow, working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and keep Shareholders
informed of balanced and understandable information about the Company
in a factual and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company’s open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers,
analysts and the media through effective corporate communication system
covering various communication channels including Shareholders’ meetings,
corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 September
2020, the Chairman of the Board and all other Board members, including
Chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as senior
management and the external auditor were present to communicate with
Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed resolutions
were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted and
the poll results of the meeting were published on both the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company's head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Constitutional Documents

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company meets with institutional investors, financial
analysts or media from time to time and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company also
participates in investor summits or corporate days when appropriate, to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department
at ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

e Tk e

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants, casual dining
chains, institutional catering, as well as food processing and distribution in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s business and operations
were severely affected by the mandatory social distancing restrictions on
in-restaurant dining and the dampened consumer sentiment amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in a significant decrease in the Group's
revenue recorded for the year. Though initially caught off-quard by the
severity of the pandemic, the Group swiftly took measures to adjust
operations and business models to the “new normal”, developed and
implemented specific measures to improve productivity and efficiency in
different perspectives, including stringent cost control measures, manpower
deployment and acceleration of technology upgrades to capture more
takeaway and delivery business. The Group’s operations in Mainland China
has recovered though facing a more severe initial lockdown period and is
seizing the opportunity to continue network expansion in the Greater Bay
Area. The Group is thankful for government pandemic relief and subsidies,
as well as the concerted efforts of our management team and staff under
the extremely difficult environment, which enabled the Group to mitigate
the adverse impact of the revenue decline and record a substantial increase
in profit attributable to shareholders for the year as compared to FY2019/20.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

A fair review of the Group’s business for the year with analysis using
financial key performance indicators as well as discussion on principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group subsequent to the financial year end, if any, and future
development of the Group’s business are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section in the Company’s Annual Report 2020/21.

Together with the Annual Report 2020/21, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report which discloses the Group’s sustainability
performance for the reporting year in four key areas, namely, Catering to
Customers, Empowering Our Employees, Focusing on Food and Preserving
the Planet. The report discusses in detail the Company’s environmental
policies and performance as well as our relationship and continuous
engagement through various channels with our customers, employees,
suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a significant impact on the
Group.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business and
operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2020/21 as well as the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2020/21.

The abovementioned discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and
Sustainability Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 form part of this
Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 87 of the Company’s Annual Report 2020/21.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK10 cents per share was paid. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK28 cents
per share, totaling approximately HK$163,997,000 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 10
September 2021. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 6 September 2021 (“AGM"). Details of dividends for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$776,919,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set out
on page 213 of the Company’s Annual Report 2020/21.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$334,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no shares of the Company were issued on exercise of
share options under the Company’s Share Option Schemes. Details of the
movements of share capital and share options of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 20 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s Share Option Schemes as disclosed in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 214 to 216 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2020/21.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed
securities, except that the trustee of the Company’s Share Award Scheme
purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) a total of 1,542,055 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$25.5 million to satisfy the award of shares to
selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of
the Share Award Scheme.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2021. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company's Bye-laws and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, Mr
Au Siu Cheung, Albert and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan shall retire by rotation at
the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
Information on Directors proposed for re-election will be set out in the
circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the resolutions to
re-elect them at the AGM.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).

Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible

participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the

terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no

share options had been granted by the Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of

the issued shares that

it represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Employees, Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, suppliers
and customers of the Group and
consultants, advisers, managers, officers
and corporations that provide research,
development or other technical support
to the Group

57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
9.76% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when the
right to exercise the option in respect of
all or some of the shares the subject of
the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), under
which any individual being an existing director, employee, officer, supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser or manager of any member of the Group is
entitled to participate in as selected participant who may be granted an
award of restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period
commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day immediately
prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date. The purpose
of the Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. The Scheme
also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package
in order to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s
business, and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the
interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15
years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) I3 R EEt &l (&)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, restricted shares and performance ~ REE T - —F=H=+— EI LEFERN - K

shares were awarded to selected participants pursuant to the Share Award 2 AIRIE IR (7 RENET S ML TE L HER TR
Scheme. Details of movements of shares awarded under the Scheme during ~ Hll1ERR (7 S & B 1D © IRIFZ EJr%JTitHZHXTJJ
the year were as follows: RERNZEEBFBRAT -

Number of shares

RGEAE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2020 during during during 2021 Vesting
Grantees grant R-E-ZF the year the year the year R=F=—% period
BERA RHBH ME—HB REARYE REREE RERXM =ZA=+-H HEH
Director & substantial
shareholder
ESRTIERR
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 31/7/2017 23,942 - (23,942) - - 31/7/2018 -
BRiEAEE 31/7/2020 @
31/7/2018 62,928 - (30,993) - 31,935 31/7/2019 -
31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 40,822 - (13,471) - 27,351 31/7/2020 -
31/7/12022 @
31/7/2019 440,879 - - - 440,879 6/2022 ©®
31/7/2020 - 55,961 - - 55,961 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
Director
E=x
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 31/7/2017 8,552 - (8,552) - - 31/7/2018 -
BEAKHE 31/7/2020 @
31/7/2018 22,474 - (11,069) - 11,405 31/7/2019 -
31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 14,579 - (4,811) - 9,768 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 157,457 - - - 157,457 6/2022 ®
31/7/2020 - 19,986 - - 19,986 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

R4 SR BEtE ()

Number of shares

RHEE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2020 during during during 2021 Vesting
Grantees grant R-BZEF the year the year the year R=F=—% period
ARA RHBH ME—B RERRYE REREE RERXM =ZA=+-H HEH
Continuous contract 31/7/2017 243,657 - (242,799) (858) - 31/7/2018 -
employees 31/7/2020 @
EEANES
31/7/2018 743,414 - (367,108) (26,300) 350,006 31/7/2019 -
31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 1,075,972 - (355,859) (55,852) 664,261 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 2,550,292 - - (118,542) 2,431,750 6/2022 ©
31/7/2020 - 1,539,595 (2,092) (47,958) 1,489,545 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
31/7/2020 - 400,136 - (29,247) 370,889 6/2022 ©
5,384,968 2,015,678 (1,060,696) (278,757) 6,061,193
Notes: B & -

(@) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the awarded shares
respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance of the
remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary
date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.

(b) The awarded shares are subject to attainment of performance targets with reference to the
Group's performance.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 17,467,695 shares had been awarded
under the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 2.98% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

EERFEITHRAERKRS - 1868
BRORBEZP 2ERRAR

RZEZ—F=A=+—0 ' ARFARER

REAEGE(BHREBAE KRG L) F35214&m
FEZERMATREEE - SRR AR BIF &%+
Rl L RARIESHEITESF X HNWITESTE
(ME%E<PR) ST AR R R BB
KRB EEEREFENTERAR T RE B
EE(REBEHFMABGRAEXVE 2 EE) 2K
- BERD RES 2 EREHINT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
AATEER HERGHE (FR)

% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Personal Family Corporate Other derivatives Total HE BT
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests [N interests i E-C]
EENE B AR Kk NEERE HipEz PTETER Ay ZED*

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - - 40,983,394@ - 64,433,894 11.001%
R A

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000 ® - 17,039,928 2.909%
BEELL

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500 - - - 17,033,907 2.908%
FRAA S A

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837 0.004%
RPREE S

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000 @ - - - - 55,000 0.009%
TEHESLE

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 688,755 - - 91,708,213®  556,126% 92,953,094 15.870%
BIEASLAE

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 119,338 - - - 198,616 % 317,954 0.054%
RS E

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at
31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) These shares comprised (i) 3,000,000 shares held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny (“Mr Lo") is a trustee; and (i) 37,983,394 shares held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited
(“Ardley”) in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) of which Mr Lo and Victor
Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) were the unit holders. Mr Lo was deemed to be
interested in these shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach
as well as a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

(0 Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests of
his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a trustee.

(d) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(e) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak Shing,
Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the
family trusts.

(f) These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

EERETETHRAERKRND - HHE
BROREZPzEERAR ()

Mt -

(a) ZEMRMEIEN)BH—E S E# 3,000,000 75 - 7 FH
SEE(REE]) RZERZEFEAN K (i) 37,983,394 &
%1% 1 Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited ([Ardley]) ABE {715
FE(TEBAERE]) 2 ZFEAFMIFE o 854 R Victor Reach
Investments Limited ([Victor Reach]) A E I ZsE 2 A
A o Z% A B Ardley & Victor Reach M — 83 M B {E57E%
A HIEAR AR E 2SR D -

(b) ZERMHEZR—EERA AEELLRZESZHETE
Ao

(© BRI R E RS 2 S T ROR B B R SR M -
413,000,000 1 B —Ea Y - REBAZES Y S
A

(d) ZEBRNHMFEESEEARRBARTE -

(e) #ZZMtn B Wandels Investment Limited ([Wandels ) %75 -
Sky Bright International Limited ([ Sky Bright]) & Verdant
Success Holdings Limited ([ Verdant Success]) 2 5l # &
Wandels 50% 2 #& #= ° Sky Bright & Verdant Success3 £
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited® & 74 - Butterfield
Trust (Guernsey) Limited 2B 2K IEEFTZ XA o #
BEREEREP—BREEIZZREA  MHERFEZ

FhinfEs -

( ZEERTIREAR RN SR E 2 REBIRN -

A ERARBIM REALTET A 2 HE RN
PR RER BMETNESERAR
ARt - RO RESFPRBEMAR -

B EXPIREEN RZEZ—F=A=+—
A ARAZEERERPTERREEALZ
B A TREEN AR AR E L AREAE (3%F
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of every person,
other than a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRER
RZBEZ—F=A=+—8 " ARAREZH
REAEGRAIE 336 xR TF2ELEMAT - 5
BARREIRGD RAAER G EmSORE 2 AL (B
EARRATCBEITRAS% A F) (BARQFIE
EREFHRITEINEINAT -

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
ERREERHERGHE (FR)

Name of Personal Family Corporate
substantial shareholders interests interests interests
TERRESR 28 PN Ei Y E DE) R

Wandels Investment Limited - - _
Sky Bright International Limited - . _
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - -
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited - — _

Ms Tso Po Ping - 64,433,894 ® -
BETLL

Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited - - -

Victor Reach Investments Limited - - -

Mr Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834
ERBLE
Ms Man Bo King - 68,012,834 € -
NERLL
LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 ® - -
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,7019@ - -

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited - - -

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at
31 March 2021.
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% of total
issued
shares *
Other Total HE BT
interests interests IR0 4258
HiEs EEAE ZED*
91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
91,708,213@ 91,708,213 15.658%
- 64,433,894 11.001%
37,983,394 37,983,394 6.485%
37,983,394@ 37,983,394 6.485%
@ - 68,012,834 11.612%
- 68,012,834 11.612%
- 35,969,133 6.141%
- 31,911,701 5.448%
29,388,000 29,388,000 5.018%

* O BASHNER-E-_—FZAZ+—BARRCETRNG
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak Shing,
Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of
his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her spouse,
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

These shares were held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”) in the capacity of trustee
of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”). Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) was deemed
to be interested in the shares by virtue of being a beneficiary of the Unit Trust. Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue of
being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a beneficiary of the Unit
Trust.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to 35,969,133

shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK") and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by MMW Holding
Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her spouse,
Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held in the capacity of investment manager.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the register maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 19 March 2020, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen"”) entered into a new framework agreement (2020
Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms upon which Fung Yuen
and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would continue to be engaged
by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation, maintenance and/
or related services to the shops operated or managed by the Group in Hong
Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in the People’s Republic of China (the
“Renovation Works"”) for a further term of three years from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2023 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 HK$30,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group. Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2020 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 March 2020 and 24 March 2020.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2020 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$2,452,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the
year.
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ANNUAL REVIEW

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2020 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2021 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0 according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56

of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted a connected
transaction but was exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael was re-designated from a co-opted member to
board director of Haven of Hope Christian Service on 27 November 2020.

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry (“Mr Kwok"”) has been appointed as a director
of Heep Hong Society on 27 November 2020.

Mr Kwok ceased to be a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Prince of Wales Hospital and a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts of the Securities and Futures Commission on 31 March
2021.

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

(Non-executive Director)

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael ceased to be a member of Advisory
Committee on Management and Marketing of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University on 1 January 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A S8 e o

&

pwec

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Café de Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 212,
which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to risk of revenue

recognition.

Key Audit Matter

BREEER
Risk of revenue recognition

W A RSB B

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group’s accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 22 for the analysis of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

A2 220 EREABRAMRENGETBOR RMT
22 BEEERNBE_T-—F=A=+—HIFENKRA
DT

The Group recognised revenue of HK$6,714 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

EEEREE T —F=A=1Tt—HLEFERREA
6,714 BEETT °

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing
of data or interfaces of data amongst the various systems
may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required
significant time and resource to audit.

REREBORER EEREMESTELEENRRE
R BAILHEINHERY KRB ATER » WA
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNET AR ERRETSBE

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
internal controls in its revenue recognition process.

P TERBEEEENHRARREEFNHEE
RIBBFE I o

We involved Information Technology specialists to evaluate
the design of the relevant controls (including automated
controls) over revenue recognition and tested the operating
effectiveness of those controls.

HFIRBEE AR B R S WA FERR M 2R 5T A AR A
(BEa 8] - WAIRHZ SRR EERE -

We performed analytical procedures on revenue by
comparing the actual result of the current year with that of
the prior year.

HPEBLBRAFENERERE TFENEBRER 8
W ADREA D AT ©

We tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to bank
receipts and other relevant evidence.
BAIEBEPRITUIE R HMARREMEHER S -
We tested samples of journal entries posted to revenue
accounts selected on risk based criteria.
HHRREREERS Tt ARARRK BRRE -

We found the sales transactions being tested were supported
by appropriate evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ms. Kong Pui Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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Asat 31 March 2021 R =T —-—F=F=+—H
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
iy i
—E-—F TECTF
=A=+—H —A=+—-H
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B aE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 6 1,518,982 1,608,831
Right-of-use assets EREEE 6 2,124,383 2,705,239
Investment properties HEME 7 542,700 585,600
Intangible assets B EE 8 1,229 1,421
Deferred income tax assets RIETIREE 16 70,733 66,294
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEINAEMEERA
other comprehensive income ZEmMEE 10 96,951 101,033
Retirement benefit assets BIREEHNEE 15 542 =
Non-current prepayments and deposits  JERENTE RIBRIZS 1 283,622 277,820
4,639,142 5,346,238
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories FE 12 234,924 260,626
Trade and other receivables EE K H A U BRI 13 102,539 166,518
Prepayments and deposits EANFIBERES 13 51,490 60,920
Current income tax recoverable BNERRT U 1 £ IR 32,844 39,743
Bank deposits with maturity over 83 =& A 2|8 B eV R1TE K
three months 14 21,222 1,641
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 14 2,072,512 345,072
2,515,531 874,520
Total assets BB 7,154,673 6,220,758
EQUITY fschE
Capital and reserves attributable to RNATRERE A
equity holders of the Company FEAG AR I
Share capital [i&N 20 58,570 58,570
Share premium 15 w8 21 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share award scheme [t L2EY T S35 2 D 21 (140,944) (146,021)
Other reserves H b 21 508,452 468,520
Retained earnings REB A 21
— Proposed dividends - BERAR B 163,997 -
— Others - EAb 1,817,640 1,664,542
3,028,837 2,666,733
Non-controlling interests FESZ I R 5,999 4,579
Total equity FR 4B AT 3,034,836 2,671,312
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

G 7 A BEIR DL 3

As at31 March 2021 R—ZE-—F=A=+—H
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
n S
:g:_fﬁ — 7 — E'E
=HA=+—H —A=+—-H
Note HK$’000 HK$000
BT FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FERIBEE 16 33,424 29,410
Provision for long service payments REARG S BE 15 30,629 48,778
Retirement benefit liabilities BREEFEE 15 - 10,346
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 1,368,550 1,845,279
Long-term borrowings REAER 19 999,433 -
2,432,036 1,933,813
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables B ETARIE 17 178,183 172,161
Other creditors and accrued liabilities B pESERIE R FERTE A 18 640,378 675,200
Current income tax liabilities BIHATRIE B & 7,719 13,487
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 681,521 754,785
Current portion of long-term REAERHBVERER 5D 19 100,000 -
borrowings
Short-term borrowings REAER 19 80,000 —
1,687,801 1,615,633
Total liabilities EEE 4,119,837 3,549,446
Total equity and liabilities [N B EERE 7,154,673 6,220,758
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREEE,/ (& 827,730 (741,113)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRIDER 5,466,872 4,605,125
The notes on pages 92 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated 28 92 £ 212 B 2 it B4R & B 1§k a0 B

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 212 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY

Chairman
TE
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Consolidated Income Statement - By Function of Expense
R A E R R — nmmes

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE=ZT=—F=A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
___g___—qi — 7 — = E'E
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B =E FET FEIL
Revenue A 22 6,714,255 7,963,097
Cost of sales SHEA 24 (6,339,067) (7,232,445)
Gross profit EA 375,188 730,652
Other income and other HAYA R EAth
(losses)/gains, net F(E518) E A 23 561,011 (40,540)
Administrative expenses THE R 24 (462,619) (481,414)
Operating profit £ 18 s ) 473,580 208,698
Finance costs, net B R AR 25 (83,034) (94,440)
Profit before income tax R A5 B Al 390,546 114,258
Income tax expense FriSHi & A 26 (29,996) (39,872)
Profit for the year KEEm A 360,550 74,386
Profit attributable to: FEARSR
Equity holders of the Company RATIRIERE A 359,130 73,634
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 1,420 752
360,550 74,386
Earnings per share for profit A RIRERB ARG
attributable to the equity holders v A 2 AR A
of the Company
Basic /N 28 HK$0.62 % T HK$0.13%& 7T
Diluted e 28 HK$0.62 & T HK$0.13 7% 7T

The notes on pages 92 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7£592 £ 212 B 2 M ARG A M EHRENE

SRR ©

:m]i

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

S T e 3

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE=—ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E_—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit for the year NG A 360,550 74,386
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Htb2EKA (Ei8)
Item that may be reclassified to IAE%/%%@%?E 7 T H
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from BRI B AR 2 N =
translation of foreign subsidiaries 32,249 (25,293)
Items that will not be reclassified T EBfE1E BN DA 8 o H A
subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ EFTEEARESEFEER
liabilities and provision for long ARG BE
service payments 24,887 (2,775)
Fair value loss on financial assets at RATEIIAREMEERAZ
fair value through other PRIEEMNATHERERE
comprehensive income (4,082) (53,069)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REEH2ERA (BE)
for the year 413,604 (6,751)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEAFER2EBA (E18)
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - ARFIRERA A 412,184 (7,503)
— Non-controlling interests - IEE S 1,420 752
413,604 (6,751)

EERE212A 2 MERNGEMBEHRRNE

7 ©

The notes on pages 92 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated

Euia)

kol
UH’

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
w0 WE o 5 ) 3

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE=ZT=—F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  scheme reserves  earnings Total interests equity
Ry &E
iTEEE FiRHIM

Bx  RiaE B Htifie  REER e BE  REA
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
FE7 TEn TéErn A7 TEn TéErn FEr TéErn

Balance as at 1 April 2020 WZZ-ZENA—-A#H 58570 621,122 (146,021) 468520 1,664,542 2,666,733 4,579 2,671,312
Profit for the year RERRA = = = - 359,130 359,130 1420 360,550

Other comprehensive incomef(loss): ~ Et2ERA /(58 :
Exchange differences arising from BREINHBAR L

translation of foreign subsidiaries BEiEH - - - 329 - 329 - 32,249
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATEIAEMEE
fair value through other WA e REEN
comprehensive income NEES - - - (4,082) - (4,082) - (4,082)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERKERFIAE
liabilities and provision for long RRERHEEE
service payments - - - - 24,887 24,887 - 24,887
Total comprehensive income/(loss) B2ENA/ (BB - - - 28167 384017 412,184 1420 413,604
Employee share award scheme-value B E k{725 2l
of employee services - EEREER - - - 33 - 33123 - 3313
Purchase of shares BARR - - (25,480) - - (25,480) - (25.480)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme k(7% 2l D5 B - - 30,557  (23,287) (7,270 = = =
Transfer to statutory reserves BRSLTRE - - - 1,929 (1,929) = = =
Dividends ke = - - - (57,723)  (57,723) - (57,723)
- - 5,077 11,765 (66,922)  (50,080) - (50,080)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 R_E-—%F=f
=t—H&H 58,570 621,122  (140,944) 508452 1,981,637 3,028,837 5999 3,034,836
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
w0 WE o 5 ) 3

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE=ZT=—F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARIRRELS
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme  reserves  eamings Total ~interests equity
)
A FEFEHIME
Bx  BRRE 2B EfREE REEF s Be  REEH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEr  FEr  FEr FEr  FEr FEr FEr FEAT
Balance as at 1 April 2019 RZZ2-nFmA—A
&% 58554 616,811  (133,020) 542,070 2,090,219 3,174,634 5220 3,179,854
Profit for the year REE G| - - - = 73,634 73,634 752 74.386
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: b2 (B51) /A :
Exchange differences arising from BREINHBAR L
translation of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - (25293) - (25293) - (25293)
Fair value loss on financial assets at ~ RAFESIAEMZE
fair value through other WAZ EREER
comprehensive income NTEER = = - (53,009) - (53,069) - (53,009)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERKEEFEER
liabilities and provision for long REORHERE
service payments - - - - (2,775) (2,775) - (2,775)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income B2E(58) /R - - - (18362 70,859 (7,503) 752 (6,751)
Employee share award scheme-value BB R 8l
of employee services -EERKEE - - - 23,845 - 23,845 = 23,845
Purchase of shares BARH = - (40,631) = - (40,631) - (40,631)
Proceeds from shares issued BRG 2 FTER 16 3,585 = = = 3,601 = 3,601
Release of share-based compensation BT &g MR
reserve to share premium upon fmdeREEA
exercise of share options R (E - 726 - (726) - - - -
Vesting of shares of share award scheme [&(7 2B 2l 5B - - 27630 (21,637) (5,993) = = =
Transfer upon lapse of share options ~ RAR{A & K mEE s - - = (555) 555 = = =
Transfer to statutory reserves BRSLTRE - - = 3,885 (3,885) = = =
Distribution to non-controlling interests A FIE b1 - - - = = = (811) (811)
Dividends kS = - - - (487213) (487.213) (582)  (487,795)
16 4,311 (13,001) 4812 (496,536)  (500,398) (1,393)  (501,791)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 RZB-Z4=A=1-H
el 58,570 621,122 (146,021) 468,520 1,664,542 2,666,733 4579 2,671,312

The notes on pages 92 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
o EeERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B#Z—_ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—ES-—F —EFF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEXEBEE RERE
Net cash generated from operations BEELAZFRS 31(@a) 1,722,384 1,529,292
Hong Kong profits tax paid Bz BEEFEH (18,864) (93,319)
Overseas taxation paid B 2 FINRIE (10,589) (18,956)
Net cash generated from operating REEBESX 2FHE
activities 1,692,931 1,417,017
Cash flows from investing activities RERHEEZREME
Purchase of property, plant and NEWE - WEREE
equipment (277,948) (502,307)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERREFER
plant and equipment 31(b) 1,739 1,294
Decrease in bank structured deposits SRITEBEER ZmD 10,918 18,238
Dividend received from listed investments & 4 & &% 2 3,572 12,246
Interest received B Uz FE 8,125 16,098
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits (&), SmiBRiE=1EAE
with maturity over three months BB RISRITIE K (19,581) 20,224
Net cash used in investing activities AREEEE) 2 FiRE (273,175) (434,207)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBELZHEERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERATER 31(c) 1,179,254 =
Purchase of shares held for share BERN EEETEIFE 2D
award scheme (25,480) (40,631)
Dividends paid BEAREE (57,723) (487,795)
Payment of lease liabilities SRHEERE 31(c) (801,979) (935,542)
Interest paid BEAFIE 31(0) (6,111) -
Net proceeds from issue of shares TRt BARE M 31 TAR D 2
upon exercise of share options FTiSRUF 5 - 3,601
Distribution to non-controlling interests 7 B2 F IE{E Hl 1 25 - (811)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBAEE(FTA)Z
financing activities FIRE 287,961 (1,461,178)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBEEEEE 2
cash equivalents SEICRAd) 1,707,717 (478,368)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FEARNRSKRSEEEE
beginning of the year 345,072 835,537
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNESTE sRegit 7 272 19,723 (12,097)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FEARKRESMASEEIER
of the year 14 2,072,512 345,072

The notes on pages 92 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7292 £212 B 2 fiiE RANGRE M S MK A B

5 -
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financial statements.
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of quick
service restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering, as
well as food processing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2021.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), which are carried at fair
value.
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2.1

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Amended standards and conceptual framework adopted
by the Group

The following amended standards and conceptual framework have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2020:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a business”

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, “Definition of
material”

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9, “Interest
rate benchmark reform”

o Conceptual framework for financial reporting 2018

The adoption of these amendments to standards and conceptual

framework does not have any significant impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

2.1

(i)

EEZESTTHRREE (&)

mEELE (F)
RUHABBHBREENNGA 3T
BEBEERETHRSINEE - 12
BAEERAAEERH BRI (E
L B -

REEC BRAN AV IS T ZE B LUK 48R
SHER

AEER _T_TFMA—BRZER
SRRV R R B R RIA TN ERT 2R
AR AELR -

. ERPBEIME LR 3 ZERT [ %75
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. FEEFH R REA ST ERIS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 ZFEEEHBKREE (E)

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REELE(F)
(i)  New and amended standards and annual improvements (i) FEIRLEFTERREFEERE B
not yet adopted IR

AT REBMEFTR]IA R EERTER K
FEXE  BY KRR _T_FTFMA—
BFBETBEE AR - THER R o

The following new and amended standards and annual
improvements have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2020 and have not been early adopted.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHBERS
HZEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BAREMEER 16 2185]
Amendments to HKFRS3
BANBWEER 3 21E5T
Amendments to HKAS 16
BAGTER6 285]
Amendments to HKAS 37
BB GFTER37 2BET
Amendments to annual
improvements project
FRBCERTEIZER]
Amendments to HKAS 1
BAGETER 2185]
HKFRS 17
BN BEREER17

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
BEVBHHESE 10 REEG

AR 28 Z{EF]

COVID-19-related rent concessions
SR AR IEEE e B
Reference to the conceptual framework
BESESE 2 12
Proceeds before intended use
¥ E RS BIFTS5IE
Cost of fulfilling a contract
B 4P AR
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
TR N\FEZTTF
BRI WS ERFEUE
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
HBESEATESIERE
Insurance contracts
REBEH
Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate
or joint venture
REEHEABENRSIEERAZ
Mz EELESEE BAEY

1 June 2020
—E-FTFH—H
1 January 2022

—F__F—H—H
1 January 2022
—ET__F—A—H
1 January 2022
—T-_F—h—H
1 January 2022
—F__F—H—H

1 January 2023

—E-=%—H—H
1 January 2023
—T=%—H—H

Not yet established

by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified
Public Accountants
TR A& moREIET B &

AL ERR T EZE A RGBT £
AR EEUGE 2 8 - HRE R AR
HIE & T EE QB RE M E R
BEXYE -

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and amended standards and annual improvements, but is yet in
a position to state whether they would have significant impacts on
its results of operations and financial position.
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2.2

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S v B 265 % R i

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.2
(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2
(b)

2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance costs, net’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Freehold land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5%
Shorter of remaining period of

Building

Leasehold improvements
the lease or useful life

10%

12.5% - 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and other equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. They are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

2

2.5

EESTHRRE (&)

Y% - = Kkt ()
KAEBTWBATERE - HiL W
¥ - BERREDAERER LG T
FF R A R A B = 2RI (B (E
SHESTE - IRARFTERMT :

BF 2.5%
HEBFEE BT A AIEA
FHZ&EE
55 B 23 10%
FEMREAMERE  12.5%-33.3%

RBERRRABEENFRKEENA B
FH - WEHEEHRE -

EEEMNERESREMGTTKE S
2 HERME(ERNRSFHUR 2 T Y [0 5 8 (B
$¥28)

HE 25 K B 18 T35 B L B P 1S R
REEMET @ I AGEEER
W o

RAEEERIERRYEMELRELKR
BEMENMENS - AEEREE RS
EREM[AEYE  MxMERZAR
FRHEEAFEZRNEAEZRAAR
EBGEE -

HEREEANAFEDRIELRAR
SIREBEMEORAN - REEZWE

REE A ©

AREEEARRAA] 202021 F3k

101



2.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Right-
of-use assets of the leasehold land that meet the definition of
investment property are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by

external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.
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2.6

2.7
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)
Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwiill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other income and other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.9 and Note 3.1(d) for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and other receivables for a description
of the Group's impairment policies.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in respect
of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and
losses that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred
if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on interest rates on similar
borrowings in the entity’s functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

(@)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty and franchise income
Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an accrual basis over
the period in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.

112 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

2

EEZESTTHRREE (&)

2.20 WA TERR

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BABREAREEBBRET KK
A EE R R RBREN A TE -
WA AR TR R BRIIR

WAR (5L ) Emek RIS R IE Hl S
TEPRER - YA NIERERE
I E » 2 K AR5 0458 1) 4 m] BE BB A
RN A —FEHEE AEESRE
HEBUEEEFPEN X5BHEME
AL PRV RSB AT ©

HERY R m
HERMEKMWBAR AR P HER
IREEERANTEFINER  BFE
BRI B A B ARRE R W AR TR My U @ AT
BEREFRAESBERTER

HEWA
HERANBGEIEHEHMNGAIE
TR TER ©

Bk ERNERA
o R I BN Y AR B4R Bt e Y MR
BN EI IR BT B ERERASR

EENERHBEEWA
BIE N R 75 B W A\ BE £ A R 755 1O B ] A
BARK °



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVOCI.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Income grants are presented as “other income” in the consolidated
income statement.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of
profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group's retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on their nature.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.27 Financial guarantees

3.1

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by
management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for bank
deposits and bank borrowings, the income and operating cash flows
of which are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates which are subject to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been HK$4,924,000 decreased/
increased and HK$2,760,000 increased/decreased, as a result of the
changes in the interest expenses on bank borrowings and interest
income on bank deposits.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the directors are of the opinion that any
reasonable changes in interest rates would not result in a significant
change in the Group’s results. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
presented for interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2021, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at FVOCI) had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment
reserve would have increased/decreased by HK$9,695,000 (2020:
HK$10,103,000).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group's
bank balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial
institutions which are independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance
by these banks and financial institutions as they have no default
history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at
bank is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made as at
31 March 2021.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group’s historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is close
to zero and no provision was made as at 31 March 2021.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's bank
balances and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions
with good credit ratings, and the Group has a large number of
counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to
the expected credit loss model:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents;
(2) Trade receivables; and

(3) Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, as all financial
institutions are rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

) Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXERERE(E)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiREkEEZE(E)
Credit risk (Continued) (d) EERPk(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) =MEEREGE)

(2)  Trade receivables (Continued) 2) EREENERL(E)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment pattern of
sales over a period of 12 months before 31 March 2021 or
31 March 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020. In respect of trade receivables, the loss
allowance as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was
determined as follows:

EHEEEDRERN T _—F
=A=+t—HxX—ZT-_ZTF=F7
=t+t—HA 2@/ BHESaHEE
B SRIB I R AN B R A 3R A9 A
ERATEEBEFESL - B
EBEXEEEARURBREER
PR ERERIBRE I R B
E=AE B RBIREEER o

R EE W-_ET-—-5=A8
=t+—"HEZZEZZEF=A
=+—H - £XERRIBENTEH
EIEERFIERELT - g
EWEREMS RZT=Z—F=
A=+—BR-_ZE_TFE=H4
=+ —HREEREETAT

31 March 2021 0-30days 31-60days 61-90days 91-365days Over 365 days Total
ZE_-¥=f=+-H 0Z30H 31260A 61290H 91%2365H %1365 A At
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET &7 FE7 TET FE7 FET

Gross carrying amount AR
- Trade receivables - BRI 21,362 6,378 2,288 1,296 825 38,149
Loss allowance BERE - - - - (823) (823)
31 March 2020 0-30days  31-60days  61-90days 91-365days  Over 365 days Total
“E-TE-A=1-H 0%30A 312608 612907 91£365H #365H @5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT TET TAT FAT TAT FAT

Gross carrying amount BRE(E
- Trade receivables - ERRWRIE 23,754 7,070 9,272 10,084 877 51,057
Loss allowance EBEE - - - = (875) (875)

ARBEEHR AR 2020/21 F
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(3)  Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised cost include the other
receivables excluding prepayments. The credit quality of other
financial assets at amortised cost has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of the counterparties.
Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other financial
assets at amortised cost is assessed to be close to zero and
no provision was made as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The Group has considered the present and
expected market conditions, including the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak and the expected pace of recovery. The Group continues to
maintain a healthy net cash position by keeping credit lines available
and to maintain flexibility in future funding.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments for trade and
other payables and operating expenses. The Group mainly finances
its working capital requirements through internal resources and
borrowings from financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXERERE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEREZE (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) RBEZRME ()
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted ERTPHEBENSBEAEGHORMBALSR
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying E-@HRBERNEETTEKR Bt
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. TEA AN AREEE N AR
HE o
Total
undiscounted
Within Between 1 Between 2 More than  cash outflows
On demand 1year  and2years  and 5 years 5 years AERRS
BER 18R 1225R 2E55R SELE HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEn AT FEn A FEn FEn
At 31 March 2021 WZE-—F=f=
Trade payables BEENER 178,183 - - - - 178,183
Other payables and At ERREREER
accrued liabilities (FefEkeRaR)
(excluding non-financial
liabilities) 477,142 - - - - 477,142
Lease liabilities HEBRE - 755,880 548,388 849,876 64,366 2,218,510
Bank borrowings FATER - 180,000 100,000 900,000 - 1,180,000
655,325 935,880 648,388 1,749,876 64,366 4,053,835
Total
undiscounted
Within Between 1 Between 2 More than ~ cash outflows
On demand 1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years FERHRE
REX 15/ 1226R 2E5ER SN E nERE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FET AT FET FET FET
At 31 March 2020 RIE-ZF=-A=1—
Trade payables BEENRA 172,161 = = = = 172,161
Other payables and At ERERERETER
accrued liabilities (FefEkeRaR)
(excluding non-financial
liabilities) 492,586 - - - - 492,586
Lease liabilities HEAR - 839,579 699,664 1,172,609 103,320 2,815,172
664,747 839,579 699,664 1,172,609 103,320 3,479,919
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group monitor capital on
basis of gearing ratio, which is calculated based on total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, as the Group is in a net
cash position of HK$893,079,000 and HK$345,072,000 respectively,
management considers that the Group’s capital risk is minimal.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2021:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE
— Listed equity investments - EiRRERE

3.3

B REREE (&)

DNEMET ()

AEER T —F=A=+—BERQ

FEFENSREEHIIN K

Level 1
F—&
HK$°000
FETT

96,951

Total
Het
HK$°000
FET

96,951

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020:

AEBR-_FT-_TF-_A=1+—HARAQ
FEAENSREEHIINTE

Level 1 Total
E—& #Et
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BEATHEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ 2R EE
— Listed equity investments - ETlRRERE 101,033 101,033
AREEBEHRART 202021 55
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
in assessing: (i) whether an event, including the outbreak of
COVID-19, has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections, which include
among others, consideration of the present and expected market
conditions including the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and
the expected pace of recovery; and whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Group’'s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
and amortisable lives and therefore affect the depreciation and
amortisation charges in future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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S o B 05 e e B

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain
whether there are sufficient future taxable profits available before
such tax losses expire where the final outcome of these uncertainties
are different from the estimation, such differences will impact the
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such determination is made.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries. The
Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of its subsidiaries.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the undistributed
retained profits that are expected to be distributed by the Group in
the future.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement.
The Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At
the end of each reporting period, the management update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. In making the assessment,
consideration is given to assumptions based on market conditions,
such as actual market data and latest transactions for comparable
properties, existing at the end of the financial reporting period.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and iii)
including the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options or shares that are expected to vest. At the
end of each financial reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions, taking into account the
Group’s latest business performance, current market condition and
the future business outlook.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most

relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),
the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a

significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed when an option is actually exercised
(or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is revised when
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments.
He assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective,
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment result as
presented below represents operating profit excluding fair value
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation
and impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets less related depreciation for right-of-use assets —
properties; and including finance cost of lease liabilities.

AEEIBZEERARER  KEERK -
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment information of the Group for the current year and

5 2¥ERE)

AEBERFENDBEMN LR FTN

comparative figures are as follows: I
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&8 R P 3t EE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE_T-_—F=A=+—H
IHFE
Total segment revenue BAFBA 5,518,223 1,298,001 6,816,224
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) U ONCIED) (4,022) (97,947) (101,969)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (R B FMNEBUA)
(Note ii) (BF&EI) 5,514,201 1,200,054 6,714,255
Represented by timing of RIRAFERMNRREETR
revenue recognition:
— At a point in time - R 5,470,460 1,200,054 6,670,514
— Over time - EX—EBREA 43,741 - 43,741
5,514,201 1,200,054 6,714,255
Segment results (Note iii) DABEELE (il 674,219 149,405 823,624
Depreciation and amortisation e g
(excluding depreciation (EREEE-MEZFE
of right-of-use assets — properties)  Ex4h) (302,586) (63,042) (365,628)
Fair value loss on investment properties &% &Y%~ A FEEE (42,900) = (42,900)
Impairment loss of property, M - BERREZ
plant and equipment RIEEE (2,705) - (2,705)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FHEE & 2 B (EE 18 (23,680) = (23,680)
Finance income BITEUA 6,480 1,645 8,125
Finance cost on bank borrowings IRITERZ SRR (6,290) - (6,290)
Income tax expense FriStiE A (15,646) (14,350) (29,996)
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5 2¥ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B I rEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHIT
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE-_Z-_THF-H=1—H
IHFE
Total segment revenue “E KRR 6,877,088 1,202,574 8,079,662
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) -E‘ DEEWA (BsED (3,959) (112,606) (116,565)
Revenue (from external revenue) L INC =S ON)
(Note ii) (BF&E ) 6,873,129 1,089,968 7,963,097
Represented by timing of RIRAFERHRREER
revenue recognition:
— At a point in time - ER 2L 6,819,214 1,089,968 7,909,182
— Qver time - X —ERER 53,915 = 53,915
6,873,129 1,089,968 7,963,097
Segment results (Note iii) DABEELE (i) 491,525 77,304 568,829
Depreciation and amortisation e Rk g
(excluding depreciation (EREEE-MEZFE
of right-of-use assets — properties)  BR4M) (316,686) (55,749) (372,435)
Fair value loss on investment properties % & ¥% 2 A FEEE (42,400) = (42,400)
Impairment loss of property, M - BEEREZ
plant and equipment REEE (12,069) (3,185) (15,254)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FItEE & 2 {EEE (25,180) (15,400) (40,580)
Finance income B A 13,912 2,186 16,098
Income tax expense st & R (24,712) (15,160) (39,872)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 2¥&ERE)
(i) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i) NE DR G IR IEREBBRE
course of business. AT o
(i)  The Group has a large number of customers. For the (il AEBHEEREER HE-ZT
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no revenue was T FRZIBIEF=A=+—
derived from transactions with a single external customer HIEFE  WESE —INPETZ
representing 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. RGEEMRNERBKA10% K
A EZ WA ©
(i) Information of segment results (i) DEEEER
@  The following items are included in the measure (@ UWUTFEBD:FAARERY
of segment results reviewed by the Chief Executive FBRITEEHN D B XA
Officer of the Group. ATE e
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&l FE At PN
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT FET
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-—F
ZA=t—HIFE
Depreciation - right-of-use assets — properties #7& - (FFIEEE - W% 645,219 88,495 733,714
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEEROABHA 62,611 22,258 84,869
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE-_ZT-TF
:ﬂ:ffBEFE
Depreciation - right-of-use assets — properties #7% - (FEEE - W% 781,012 80,770 861,782
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEABRHBRA 87,795 22,743 110,538
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Segment Information (Continued) 5

(i) Information of segment results (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of total segment results to total profit

2EER (F)

(i) DBEEEH(E)

() BOBEXREEBERTA L

/“

before income tax is as follows: MEEERAT -
2021 2020
—E--F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Segment results Pak SE Lo 823,624 568,829
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #78 &4
(excluding depreciation (EREEE -MEZFE
of right-of-use assets BRIN)
— properties) (365,628) (372,435)
Fair value loss on investment WEWF 2 N THEEE
properties (42,900) (42,400)
Impairment loss of property, M - RE R REER
plant and equipment (2,705) (15,254)
Impairment loss of right-of-use A E 2 RIEEIE
assets (23,680) (40,580)
Finance income B RS U A 8,125 16,098
Finance cost on bank borrowings $R1TE R < MR A (6,290) =
Profit before income tax Rt A& A 390,546 114,258
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Segment Information (Continued)

5 Z2EERGE

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB PERt rEE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 5,905,698 1,048,447 6,954,145
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-Z——%F
ZA=+—RHILEE
Segment assets include: DEEERR
Additions to non-current assets REFNDEE(ERIAR
(other than financial instruments FEEF B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 487,583 188,652 676,235
As at 31 March 2020 RZE_ZEF=A=+—H
Segment assets DIEE 5,127,814 885,874 6,013,688
Year ended 31 March 2020 HEZZ-TF
ZA=+—HIEFE
Segment assets include: PEEERE
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(EBIAK
(other than financial instruments FEIEFI B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 1,054,482 172,649 1,227,131
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Segment Information (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$3,775,601,000 (2020: HK$4,562,078,000) and
HK$695,857,000 (2020: HK$616,833,000) respectively.

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

2EER (F)

R-E-_—F=ZA=+—8 A&£H
EREAERTBEAMNERHEE
(ERMIAREERBEEERIN) 75
#3,775,601,0007%8 To( — & = & F:
4,562,078,0007% 7T, ) K 695,857,000,% JT
(ZZ=F4 : 616,833,000/ 7T) °

ROBEERBEEMHRIT

follows:

2021 2020
:g: T f'i = 7 — = E'E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Total segment assets BB E 6,954,145 6,013,688
Deferred income tax assets FEFIBE = 70,733 66,294

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIAREMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ &R EE 96,951 101,033
Current income tax recoverable BNEA AT Uk B 578 32,844 39,743
Total assets EEE 7,154,673 6,220,758
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #%¥ BMERRKERMEAE

of-Use Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% BRERRE fREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture [and
buildings and other and land
(Notec)  Leasehold  equipment  Plantand use right
HHEET improvements AL machiney | Subtotal | BELMR  Properties | Subtotal Tota
(W) REBTHE  EpRE  HRRER 0G| TR VE Iy &8
HS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSUOO | HKSO00 | HKSO0D  HKSUOOD | HKSO0D  HKSTOOD
7T FET AT FET AT FET T TAT TAT
At 1 April 2019 RZF-NERA-A
Cost A 721350 1213161 1547,020 21100 | 3,708,631 630817 5283688 | 5914505 9,623,136
Accumulated depreciation and ZRNERHEER
impairment losses (152,68)  (771,763)  (1.115548)  (136,79) | (2,176,375 | (165,132)  (2,768565) | (2933697) (5,110,072)
Closing net book amount EREREE 575,082 441,398 431472 84304 | 153225 465685 2515123 | 2980808 4,513,064
Year ended 31 March 2020 HECECIE
ZRZt-RLEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE 575,082 441398 431472 84,304 | 1532256 465685 2515123 | 2980808 4513064
Additions hE = 205,%! 22910 57,789 486,720 = 697,945 697,945 1,184,665
Disposals k=3 - (9,799) (10,362) (205) (20,366) - - - (20,366)
Termination of lease RIFHE - - - - - - (3999 (9909 (39909
Depreciation & (17674 (14733)  (172.881) (19.897) |  (357,784) (14243)  (861782) | (876,025  (1,233,809)
Impairment ilA - (7,391) (7,863) - (15,254) - (40,580) (40,580) (55,834)
Exchange differences Bz (5,678) (6,578) (2,79) (1,689) (16,741) (1,131) (15,869) (17,000 (33,741)
Closing net book amount EREREE 551,730 476,259 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2705239 4314070
At 31 March 2020 i
=A=T-H
Cost A 77564 1293206 1,642,168 269917 | 392285 630817 5883668 | 6514485 10437340
Accumulated depreciation and ZRENERAEER
impairment losses (165834)  (816947)  (1,181,628)  (149,615) | (2314,024) | (180,506)  (3,628,740) | (3,809,246) (6,123,270)
Closing net book amount EREREE 551,730 476,259 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2705239 4314070
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 % ¥ BMERIREREHE
of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
1% BERRE fEREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land
buildings and other and land
(Notec)  Leasehold  equipment  Plantand use right
KBS improvements AR machinery | Subtotal | EE1HE  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wif) BEBTHEE  HHRE  HERES It | tefERE S it g
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSU00  HKSUOO | HKSO00 | HKSUOO  HKSO0D | HKSU00  HKSUOD
71 FET 7T 7 7EL 71 7T 71 FEL
Year ended 31 March 2021 BEo3--F
ZA=t-AILER
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 551,730 476,59 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2705239 4314070
Additions e - 126,854 122,850 7611 251375 - 359,524 359,524 616,899
Disposals ik = (7318) (7073) (188) (14,579) - - - (14579)
Modification and termination of leases TEEEIRA|E - - - - - - (1817 (81 (187.720)
Depreciation i (17721) (144765 (166,931) (21765 | (351,182) (14252  (733714) | (747.966)  (1,099,148)
Impairment ifA = (1,026) (1,679 - (2,705) - (23,680) (23,680) (26,389)
Exchange differences Bz 6,373 8,943 4 1715 AWLY] 1333 17,660 18,993 40,235
Closing net book amount EREREE 540,382 458947 411918 107,735 | 1518982 437392 1686991 | 2124383 3,643,365
At 31 March 2021 i —
=R=1-H
Cost BA 729426 1350420 1,684,709 281181 | 4,045,736 631,139 5820191 | 6451330 10,497,066
Accumulated depreciation and ZENERAELE
impairment losses (189044)  (891473) (1272,791)  (173446) | (2.52675) | (193747)  (4133200) | (4326,947) (6853,701)
Closing net book amount EREREE 540,382 458947 411918 107,735 | 1518982 437392 1686991 | 2124383 3,643,365
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
of-Use Assets (Continued)

(a

Depreciation expenses of HK$1,074,357,000 (2020:
HK$1,207,421,000) and HK$24,791,000 (2020:
HK$26,388,000) have been charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively (Note 24), while
impairment losses of HK$26,385,000 (2020: HK$55,834,000)
have been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains,
net (Note 23).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

The Group mainly operates restaurants, institutional catering
and casual dining chains on self-owned properties and
leased properties with lease terms ranging from 1 to 9
years. Management regards each individual restaurant as
a separately identifiable cash-generating unit (CGU) and
performs impairment assessments on each of the CGU with
impairment indicators by considering the recoverable amount
of such assets at restaurant level. During the year ended
31 March 2021, management identified those restaurants
with impairment indicators and performed impairment
assessments to estimate the corresponding recoverable
amounts of their property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use basis which cover a period of the useful life or
the remaining lease term, whichever is shorter. Impairment is
recognised when the recoverable amount was lower than the
carrying amount of a CGU. Key inputs to the determination
of the recoverable amount includes the annual revenue
growth and pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate
used to determine the recoverable amounts is approximately
11.5% per annum (2020: 8.7%).
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
of-Use Assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

In connection with the impairment assessment performed,
the Group recognised an impairment charge of
property, plant and equipment of HK$2,705,000 (2020:
HK$15,254,000) and right-of-use assets of HK$23,680,000
(2020: HK$40,580,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

(© The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows:

'E (#)

() WX BEEXBREREEE
A (&)

EEMETZRENE  REE
T E-—H®=ZA=+—HIt#F
B AEBEWRYME - BE KK
1% 2 M {E S 1 2,705,0008 7T (=
T —Z4F : 15,254,000 70) R {E
A ¥ & B 2 R B S 23,680,000
Bt (= Z = Z 4 : 40,580,000
BIT) °

© AEBLHREFONMOT

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FAETT FETL

Net book value: BREDVFE
Freehold land KA FERE LM 14,811 14,811
Buildings EES 525,571 536,919
540,382 551,730
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #%¥ BMERIERERE

of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)
(d)  This note provides information for the leases where the (d)  HEMFERREAREE AAE AMAE
Group is a lessee. &K -
0) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) RESTBIRRAKFER
financial position K& =8
The consolidated statement of financial position FREMBRARETIAT
shows the following amounts related to leases: SR ERE :
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi — 7 — = E'E
HK$000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and FRE 4 & 4t {5 FA 42
land use right 437,392 450,311
Properties S 1,686,991 2,254,928
2,124,383 2,705,239
Lease liabilities HEAE
Non-current IERED 1,368,550 1,845,279
Current RED 681,521 754,785
2,050,071 2,600,064
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6

of-Use Assets (Continued)

'E (#)

(d) This note provides information for the leases where the (d)
Group is a lessee. (Continued)

(if)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

SR SRR AR E RAE AT
EEH - (8)

income statement #
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FREEE 2 ITE
Leasehold land and land use right A& 1 #th & £ Hb 5 F 4 14,252 14,243
Properties LES 733,714 861,782
747,966 876,025
Interest expenses MEFX
(included in finance costs) (Gt ABATERLAR) 84,869 110,538
Expense relating to short term HEHHEEFH . ER
leases (included in cost of sales) (T ASHERLA) 33,043 22,737
Expenses relating to variable HEAEHEENR - W HBHE
lease payments not included HEaEEHRER
lease liabilities (T ASHERLA)
(included in cost of sales) 36,349 49,970

Leases entered by the Company were generally with

lease term of 1 to 9 years with renewal option.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, total cash
outflows for leases were HK$801,979,000 (2020:

HK$935,542,000).

ARAFIMNZHE—RE
TE9FHAM - WAlEREE
e e

HE-_T-—F=A=1+—
HIEFE - HERSRLLE
%8 £801,979,00078 jL( —
T — T 4F 1 935,542,00078
JT) °

AREEEFR AT 202021 F3F
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7 Investment Properties REW=
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FNEEER 585,600 628,000
Fair value loss (Note 23) NFEEE (i 23) (42,900) (42,400)
End of the year FERER 542,700 585,600
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: MIRBYHERBEETERN SR
2021 2020
—E--F —EC-THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income He A 14,864 21,312
Direct operating expenses EXReBRAZYEZ
from properties that generate EEEEER
rental income (994) (867)
13,870 20,445

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no un-provided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2020: Nil).

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by CBRE Limited (the “Valuer”) to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
Fair value loss has been charged to other income and other (losses)/
gains, net (Note 23).
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

7 BREWF(E)

TRABEEERZAHEIITREDE -

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2021 using
R-B-—F=A=+—HZAVEFEFXEHR

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
EEEEREER Hith AT & EH FERTEEMN
% EHRE ERWAE ERBWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (B—#%) (B=#) (B=4)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HMAF(EFE
Investment properties: TEME -

— Shops — Hong Kong - -8 - - 542,700

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2020 using

RZEZZEF=A=+—HB2Z2AVEFEANER
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
FEAEEESR HAb I #RE FERTEIERE
M5 ERR(E BABAE EVNYNE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
e att (B—#&) (B=#&) (F=%)
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T THET T

Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HEMEAFE 2
Investment properties: REME -

— Shops — Hong Kong - HH - BB - - 585,600

RRESE

BAR AT 2020/21 Fi5;
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 March 2021
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified valuer in
accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards 2017" published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is also compliant with
the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the International Valuation Standards
(IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation technique (Continued)
The Group's management reviews the valuation performed by

independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes

and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a

year for financial reporting purpose.

S o B 05 e e B

BREY= ()

HETE (])
REME R BB HEE T 2
- WEBITABIEEERDEF TR
BERFRER  AEHBERZS -

Intangible Assets BREE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
wmE HtErEE k]
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—hFMNA—A
Cost PR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation ZFEH I OB AR 1R
and impairment losses (246) (57,046) (57,292)
Closing net book amount FARERTAFE 1,104 748 1,852
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_TF-A=-1+—HItFE
Opening net book amount FYEEEFE 1,104 748 1,852
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) k4% A (M3 (a) - (408) (408)
Exchange differences PE =58 - (23) (23)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 317 1,421
At 31 March 2020 R-E_TF=A=+—H
Cost RN 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation RIEE O EEE
and impairment losses (246) (57,477) (57,723)
Closing net book amount FARAREDFE 1,104 317 1,421
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE—_Z-_—F=A=t+—RHItFE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 1,104 317 1,421
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #E$4E 3 (Fi3E (a) = (194) (194)
Exchange differences EH =5 - 2 2
Closing net book amount FARAREDFE 1,104 125 1,229
At 31 March 2021 RZE——F=H=+—H
Cost R AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation ZIEEHE R EEE
and impairment losses (246) (57,669) (57,915)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 125 1,229

ARBEEBFR AR 202021 F3;
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$194,000 (2020: HK$408,000) has been
charged to costs of sales.

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of 5 to 20 years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(9]

BYEE (8)

194,000/ 70 ( == —F 4 : 408,000
TO) 2B HEBERE T AEERA o

HEMEEEETBEERE - EFEA
FHIASZE 204

R BRI
BEDERASENELER (RERS
EEBAHA) AR -

BENEH D MEEZRAT -

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (i) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.
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9 Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2021:

Name of subsidiary
MR B

Asia Pacific Catering
Corporation Limited

RERRBRAA

Barson Development Limited
BNERARAA

Bloomcheer Limited
HEARAF

Brilliantwin Limited
fERAR AR

Café de Coral Assets Limited
Café de Coral Central
Processing Limited

Café de Coral (China) Limited
AKE(FE)BRAR]

Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS
Café de Coral Development
Limited'

Café de Coral Group Limited
ARRECEBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
ML AL
KA 2

Hong Kong
N
Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands

EBERES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Denmark
oy

British Virgin Islands

EBERES

Hong Kong
BB

Issued/
registered
capital
BRI/

o it AR 2

HK$101,000,000
101,000,000 7870
HK$10,000

10,000% 7T

HK$71,000,000
71,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

US$1
(E

HK$20
20/87C

HK$92,291,880
92,291,880 /87T

DKK 125,000
125,000 fH5 52 BB

Us$1
(E

HK$148,923,550
148,923,550 /87T

9 MEBAQE

TRHFJIN_ZE-_—F=A=+—HBH

FEMBARER :

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held'
Fifs et
bl BAL!
Ordinary 100%
TR
Ordinary 100%
&8
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g

AR

%Eé

Principal activities

Catering

R

Property investment
MERE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Investment holding
REER

Food processing
RYEE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#R

SBEARAR 2020/21 Fif
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MEBLTE
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary FEM AR BR 3Z B®1T/ FiE Fr# B %  Principal activities
MEARERE RASE it 2 A ROER B! EEXEK
Café de Coral (Guangzhou) The People’s HK$21,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited Republic of China 21,000,000 77T KR
ARE(BM) RmABRAR ("PRC")
R A RHME
(TE)
Café de Coral (Macau) Limited  Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
AKRECRM) BRAF] R 300,000;2F7C &l KR
City Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
Blae AR AR B 200,000  Ei@ MERE
Dongguan Asia Pacific PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 7,400,000/ 7T KR
REZTBHRRARRAF
Dongguan Continental PRC RMB39,186,061 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited alE AR# 39,186,061 T RYEE

REBERRARAF

Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$16,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
&5 16,000,00087c & R

Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
&5 4,000,000/ E@ R

Foshan Café de Coral Catering  PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 6,000,000 7T R

FRIUARERRBRAF

Gateway City Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 1,000,000 E&@ R
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEAREME

Global Force Limited
BREARAA

Grand Seasons (Central)
Food and Beverages
Caterers Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Limited
AEEEARAQF

Greenwise Limited
MEBFRAH

Guangzhou Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited
BMNZERRARAR]

Guangzhou Café de Coral
Foods Limited
BMARERmEERRAR]

Honour Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
ERERmARRAR

Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering
Company Limited
BMNZERRARAE

Invol Resources Limited
BRERERERAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM AR BR 3Z
RASE it 2

Hong Kong
EB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
i

PRC
H

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
i

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
PRC (operation)

&8 (G /S
RE ()

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
ERlILIEN

HK$92,466,446
92,466,446 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T
HK$22,000,000

22,000,000 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 7T

HK$16,000,000

16,000,000 AT

US$23,500,000
23,500,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$3,200,000
3,200,000 % T

HK$6,125,000
6,125,000 T

9 KMEBAR(E

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fiks Frs iz 4
bl BAL!
Ordinary 100%
BB
Ordinary 100%
BB
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
BB
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
e

AR

%Eé

Principal activities
TEXK

Catering
#R

Catering
#R
Catering
R

Catering
R

Catering
R

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
#R

Catering
R

Property investment

MERE

£EAR AT 202021 F3F
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEAREME

Jiangmen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited

TFIRFERRBRAT

Kamstar International Limited
& ERBEERAR

Kater International Limited
I BIPR B PR A A

Kolink Enterprises Limited
BlHt b E AR AR

Luckyview Enterprises Limited
FRECERRLT

Maradona Limited
Paramount Success Limited
RKARAF]

Perfect Plan International
Limited

Real King Limited
EHARAR]

Regal Universal Limited
BRREARAT

Scanfoods Limited
IBBEBERABRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM AR BR 3Z
RASE it 2

PRC
3
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

British Virgin Islands

EBERES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B
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Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
ERlILIEN

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 % 7T
HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$2
2787
HK$1
1787

HK$20
2087T

HK$24,000,000
24,000,000 7T

US$1
E

HK$25,000,000
25,000,0007&7C

HK$18,000,000
18,000,000 % 7T

HK$2,100,000
2,100,0007& 7T

9 KMEBAR(E

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
igs] s AR 47
bl BAL!
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
=8
Ordinary 100%
=8
Ordinary 100%
=8
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g

Principal activities
TEXK

Catering
#R

Catering
R

Catering
R

Leasing of premises
space
MEMELE

Leasing of properties
HEWMZE

Investment holding
REER

Catering
REER

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Food trading

ADEW%

RonE
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

i) PNSIR=Y

Shenzhen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
AINARRERRER LA

Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering

Company Limited

A EREARER DA

Silver Weal Enterprises Limited

RHEERBRAR

Sparango Limited

The Spaghetti House

Restaurants Limited

EREBRAR

Very Nice Fast Food Limited

HEERMARRAT

Vogue Asia Limited
BN ERAA]

Weli Company Limited

AZBRAF

Winfast Holdings Limited

XBEEEERAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM AR BR 3Z
RASE it 2

PRC
i

PRC
i

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
EB

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
PRC (operation)

&8 (G /S
RE ()

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
ERlILIEN

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 % 7T

HK$32,000,000
32,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 % 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 % 7T

HK$17,025,000
17,025,000 % 7T
HK$5,675,000
5,675,000/ T

HK$1
1787

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$10,000
10,0007% 7T

9

Class of

shares held

P
L4 %51

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Class A?
A%ERI2
Class B?
BAHRI2

Ordinary
g

Ordinary

Ordinary
g

B8~ R (4

Percentage
of shares
held’
s AR 47
BAL!

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

AR

Principal activities
TEXK

Catering

/9

Catering
R

Catering
#R

Catering
#HR

Investment holding

RERR

Catering
#R

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#BR

Property investment

MERE

£EAR AT 202021 F3F
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

9 MEARE)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered
and operation capital
Name of subsidiary SRR R BR1T/
MEARERE RASE it 2 ERlILIEN
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000
RERBRAR Al 300,0002F97T
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560
BEHRRERAT BB 6,701,560 7T
HK$2,872,100
2,872,100 7T
Zhongshan Café de Coral PRC HK$1,300,000
Catering Company Limited 1,300,000 77T

RILARERRERAA]

Zhuhai Café de Coral PRC HK$8,000,000
Catering Company Limited & 8,000,000/ 7T

WEAZRERRBRAT

U Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

2 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares
on certain shareholders’ rights.
g Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class

B shares have no voting rights.

4 The official names of the companies incorporated in PRC are in Chinese. English
translation is for reference only.

All of the companies incorporated in PRC are wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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Percentage

Class of of shares
shares held held'
Fiks Fr#EMk#H  Principal activities
bl B! EEXEK
Ordinary 100%  Property investment
p i MERE
Class A 100%  Catering and property
ASERI3 investment
Class B? RERYERE
B &R
- 100%  Catering

#HR
= 100%  Catering

KR

Café de Coral Development Limited 3 482 &]
HIERE - MEEMMIB AR REERE -
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RIEFIENBERIRMN 2B AMEE 21
7l o

IEHBRARABNRO ZHEAEERR
1 - T BARRIEAD 2358 AWMIRFRE -

¢ MBS RE 2 EERRERS

X o BEREHSE -

9 FrERABEMA I AR RINERE B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

10 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through

11

Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
include the following:

Listed investments denominated in HK$ & (ABTEHE)
— Market value of listed equity securities - kiR AEHE

10 BAFEIAHMEZEKA

ZEMEE

BAFEIAEEZEBAZ EBEE

BEATIER

2021
—E_—F
HK$000
FET

96,951

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
FET

101,033

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits include the following:

EHEREREN D HEREERTISH

RITEMENHE -

11 FRBESTERES

FERBENFTIENREBE TS

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET T

Deposits e 254,618 269,381
Prepayments TERTFRIE 29,004 8,439
283,622 277,820

RRESE

BAR AR 2020121 35 161
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11 Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current deposits were
denominated in the following currencies:

FERBANRERRE (&)

AEBEZIFRBRENEFEENTIE
BEHE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
HK$ BT 220,885 239,758
RMB AR 32,384 28,185
Macau pataca SBPITT 1,349 1,438
254,618 269,381
12 Inventories 12 FE

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost

of sales amounted to HK$2,008,142,000 during the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: HK$2,258,184,000).
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

13

ERNHEMEWKRE - BN

and Deposits MERZRE
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Trade receivables EEREUWEARTE 38,149 51,057
Less: Loss allowance B E TR (823) (875)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) SR EUCHEIRIE (MHiEa) 37,326 50,182
Other receivables (Note b) H b pE UL BRIE (FfizEb) 65,213 116,336
102,539 166,518
Prepayments TEfTEIE 49,260 58,340
Deposits e 2,230 2,580
154,029 227,438

(a) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90
days to certain customers for the provision of the Group's
institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the
Group’s food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(b)  As at 31 March 2021, other receivables primarily comprise
value-added tax recoverables and receivables from a security
logistic company.

(a)

(b)

AEEHEFZHENRAER S
RE - AEETBET=TENT
REEHR TR BBRRIRS -
HEAKRERMBERBEML
R RTNEER -

N-ZE-_—F=F=+—H" ' H
b & U BR T8 3 B B4 ] Uk B R (E
T R ARZZ W) A B H) B b R UK BR
3 o

ARBEEHR AR 2020/21 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

EXRHEMEBWRE - BN

MIERZEE (&)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: EERWRIENRERITAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F T T4
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
0 - 30 days Tx=+H 27,362 23,754
31 - 60 days =+—H=AT+H 6,378 7,070
61 —90 days At—H=Z=h+H 2,288 9,272
91 — 365 days Nt+—HBEZE=BA+HEA 1,296 10,084
Over 365 days HBim=m/tThH 825 877
38,149 51,057

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

and Deposits (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are

13

EXRHEMEBWRE - BN
MIERZEE (&)

REBR S LA EKERE 2 BRHEE

denominated in the following currencies: BRATERHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FAT
HK$ BT 63,772 117,506
RMB AR 38,757 48,804
Others EAfth 10 208
102,539 166,518

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current deposits are

denominated in the following currencies:

AEENRPZENREAERNATER

A

2021 2020

—E--F —EC-THF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BIT 161 618
RMB AR 2,069 1,658
Canadian dollar mExT - 288
Macau pataca BPITT - 16
2,230 2,580

RRESE

BAR AT 2020/21 Fi5;
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.yr\/‘ﬂﬁ'%%lﬁ%ﬁinf

14 Bank Deposits with Maturity Over Three 14 BB=@A I EMNRITHE
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents REAERREEHEER
(@) Bank deposits with maturity over three months  (a) BB =1EA 28 B HRI1TER
As at 31 March 2021, bank deposits with maturity over three RZZE-_—F=A=+—H " BB=
months bore average interest rate of 0.05% (2020: 1.25%) per ARHHNBETERNEEHERNR A
annum. 0.05% (ZZF =T : 1.25%) °
Bank deposits with maturity over three months were denominated in HE=1{E AR E R HRITERATIE
the following currencies: HeEtHE -
2021 2020
—E--F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
US dollar eI 19,373 -
Canadian dollar mEKXIT 1,849 1,641
21,222 1,641
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) BRERAREEEEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHRE 569,416 152,377
Short-term bank deposits RHASRTTIE AR 1,503,096 192,695
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEIEE 2,072,512 345,072

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.0%
(2020: 3.6%) per annum. As at 31 March 2021, these deposits have
an average maturity of 57 days (2020: 52 days).
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Bank Deposits with Maturity Over Three
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

14

(b)

A=A THANEGE
SRESRESZEEE
()

BeRkAEEEER ()
Re RS ZEBE U T EHHE -

currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
HK$ BT 1,873,166 236,624
RMB AREE 164,697 63,694
Macau pataca SBFITT 30,747 21,375
US dollar ETT 3,426 22,751
Canadian dollar mngxrT 457 610
Others HAi 19 18
2,072,512 345,072

The Group’s cash and bank balances amounting to HK$160,275,000
(2020: HK$59,758,000) were denominated in RMB and were
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and remittance of
these deposits out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

REBUARKHENRE RRITE
#2160,275,000% w( = T = & F:
59,758,000 7 JT ) TF B Bl A M ERTT ©
1z E A REFHER S8R IR BINE
K B H B 7 38 < P B A A8 445 B SN B
B AR TE AR -

ARBEEBFR AR 202021 F3;
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S o B 05 e e B

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) and 15 B]KE&ETFIEE (EB) &
Provision for Long Service Payments R £EE
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FH7 FH
Retirement benefit assets/(liabilities) EhesEAEE,/ ()
Defined contribution schemes (Note a)  AE#tEH 2l (Kizta) (13,946) (13,750)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) AE@FEE (MsEb) 542 (10,346)
Provision for long service payments REARG @ BH (ko)
(Note ¢) (30,629) (48,778)
Defined contribution schemes (a) HREMFKETE

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$13,946,000 (2020: HK$13,750,000), which were
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

15

(b)

BRAERANEE (BB R
REBRBS < &% (&)

SERNGTE
AEEIAESREBRHER TR
g o ZETEMENERRREENAE
BRz&ZRFe RERBFEMAE - 51
S EENEBYEAEEESAZA
SEEEDRRE -

HEFEImAREEES RS ERBIUG
HEERNEREENRREZEZEMIE
2 BERERETTHR

HRERMABEEHBILAEREE
ARt (B8 AR AR ATE EAE
B mAETRE -

The net assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated statement of LA MBIRRRANER 2 BFEE, (&
financial position are determined as follows: B R TIARERE :
2021 2020
—E--F —EC-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Present value of funded obligations EEEEZRE (76,331) (87,591)
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC A AFE 76,873 77,245
Net assets/(liabilities) in the consolidated 4R& M BAAREKANZ FEE,(BE)
statement of financial position 542 (10,346)
Remeasurement on defined benefit ETERATEERNEE (FIEAIZBRIN
obligation excluding interest expense 1,950 3,845
Remeasurement on return on plan assets BH T ET 214 = 2 B3 7,676 (2,999)
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S o B 05 e e B

15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15 EAKETINEE (BB)K

and Provision for Long Service Payments REIRE S BE (E)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) HRERAEE(E)

RERBNEENESHNT

The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FEE R (87,591) (95,911)
Current service cost A RFEA (1,642) (1,978)
Interest cost FERAR (487) (1,356)
Employee contributions & Bt (491) (568)
Remeasurement on defined benefit BHFrERA TR E
scheme 1,950 3,845
Benefits paid BEF 11,930 8,377
End of the year FREH (76,331) (87,591)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FEIEENATEERNT ¢
2021 2020
—E=-F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FOEH 77,245 82,452
Interest income FE U A 437 1,186
Employee contributions EB K 491 568
Employer contributions EEHRK 2,969 4,431
Administrative expenses paid Mt EIBEEX N ZITHER
from plan assets (15) (16)
Remeasurement on return on plan assets BH T ETEIEE 2 B3 7,676 (2,999)
Benefits paid =ENE=R (11,930) (8,377)
End of the year FREEER 76,873 77,245
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S o B 05 e e B

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as
follows:

SRERNTE ()
AR A B R NHER

15 RBRUASFANEE (BB K
REIRBBE (&)

ZERAD

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FEIT

Current service cost IR A IRFGE AR 1,642 1,978

Interest cost FERAR 487 1,356

Interest income on plan assets STEIEE 2 F B U A (437) (1,186)

Administrative expenses THER 15 16
Total, included in employee benefit w@=s - ERIEEREEEF

expenses (Note 29) R (FiFEE29) 1,707 2,164

Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement,
approximately HK$855,000 (2020: HK$1,135,000) and HK$852,000
(2020: HK$1,029,000) have been included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate AL IR &

Expected rate of future salary increases 7 R¥ B 2 A HAIE R K

Bt AGERaRNERTEBREH

EXARRITHER - 5 54855,000%8
JE(ZZF - T 4 :1,1350008 T) &
852,000/ 7L ( =& = F 4 : 1,029,000
BIT) °

PR ERRBERRAT

2021 2020
—E--F —TEF
0.6% p.a. 0.6% p.a.
550.6% BF0.6%
4.0% p.a. 4.0% p.a.
554.0% FF4.0%

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain of
HK$9,626,000 (2020: HK$846,000).

EFEAEARARKBERNA TR E
EzEHE AW59,626,000/8 T (=
T T4 - 846,000 7T) ©

ARBEEHR AR 2020/21 F
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S o B 05 e e B

15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15 EAKETINEE (BB)K

and Provision for Long Service Payments REIRE S BE (E)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REERFEI(E)
The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation EREE2ERARKBERNATEINE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2 RETEFHEE /K518 23,920,000
was a loss of HK$23,920,000 (2020: HK$33,546,000). JTL(ZZ —F 4 : 33,546,000 7T) °
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEHEEERAGEHEEER L
assets are as follows: N
2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FF
Equity instruments fxET A 28.0% 19.0%
Debt instruments EETA 61.7% 68.7%
Other assets Hih&EE 10.3% 12.3%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO") to changes AEBNETHRRESHNGRER -

in the assumption is:

Impact on DBO
HAERANEENZE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BRE& R 2 E R IE N BRI 2
Discount rate BhIR X 0.5% Decreased Increased
by 1.8% by 1.9%
A 1.8% ¥hN1.9%
Salary increase rate g ==X 0.5% Increased Decreased
by 1.8% by 1.8%
#EhN1.8% WA 1.8%
Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the HE_T__F=-A=+—HILFE "
Group for the year ending 31 March 2022 are approximately AEBESRATEAFENFEHREROR
HK$2,854,000. 2,854,000/87T ©
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Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

15 RBRUASFANEE (BB K

REIRBBE (&)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) HRERAEE(E)
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is REBNBEERNMETHFHRITE -
3.7 years.
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next R_E-——F=ZA=+—HERERF
ten years on 31 March 2021: BERRRTFOTERE B T
Between Between
Less than a 1-2 2-5 Next 5
year years years years
—F LR —ZWEF —Z2FEF T—EEFH
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
Defined benefit obligation RERMEE 9,811 13,248 29,860 16,942
Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a AEEFZAATREMNETEHRZIER
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit b - REBAGT IR —BR TR E R
depending on members' length of service and their salary at the time 745 F HA % 182 35 A o BBk e #9365y B T 72 |19 5%
of leaving the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary TEAEA] o JERRAK BIRIRE H M) 2.5% A
to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of funding FPEIMHER - AR KB A AR S8R
the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as HRER - ZirElFEAK BB INFER
interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk. B~ HNER RIS ERRERERR o
Provision for long service payments (0 RHRBEEE

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using
the projected unit credit method.

AEERBEEERRIGOHES THERLT
RIFBAB T NRIREETET -

WERRBERERTHBILEERE
Bt (F8) AR QA RRA R B
EERFPEETMHE -
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(c) Provision for long service payments (Continued)
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is determined as follows:

15 RBRUASFANEE (BB K
REIRBBE (&)

(c)

RERB 8 1H (&)

ERafBiAikRERBENT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET

Liability in the consolidated statement  4R&#BAKREZAZ BE
of financial position (30,629) (48,778)
Remeasurement on plan liabilities FEIBEZEFHE 15,261 (3,621)

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement

EHRAMBIMARANER 2 BEESMN

of financial position are as follows: N
2021 2020
S5 —T T
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FEE R (48,778) (45,258)
Current service cost R BRIGA A (2,788) (2,131)
Interest cost F B (282) (656)

Remeasurement of provision R BB EHTE

of long service payments 15,261 (3,621)
Benefits paid EREF 5,958 2,888
End of the year FRERR (30,629) (48,778)
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S o B 05 e e B

and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)  (c)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as

15 RBRUASFANEE (BB K

REIRBBE (&)

RERB 8 1H (&)

EHRABERRER ST

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current service cost RA RIS 2,788 2,131
Interest cost F B 282 656

Total, included in employee benefit ®E - DR TEEEENRAZA
expenses (Note 29) (Ft3£E29) 3,070 2,787

Of the total charge, HK$3,070,000 (2020: HK$2,787,000) have
been included in administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate BhIR =

Expected rate of future salary increases K2R 2 TBHAME & =R

¥ 3,070,008t (= =%
£ : 2,787,000 7C) BEEITHERNA o

PR ERRBERRAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
1.1% p.a. 0.6% p.a.
BF1.1% B%0.6%
4.0% p.a. 4.0% p.a.
5F4.0% B44.0%

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain
of HK$15,261,000 (2020: a loss of HK$3,621,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$32,913,000 (2020: HK$48,174,000).

ERAE2EBRARRAERE R BRE
SEBEZEH = AWEE15,261,00075
TL(ZZ-T4F : F5183,621,00087T) °

AR A 2R ATRK AR KBRS

S RHE 2 BrtEHNI= AE1832,913,000
BT (ZE T : 48,174,000587T) °
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)

(@)

and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)
Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2022 after the offset the
accrued MPF account balance is approximately HK$1,913,000.

The weighted average duration of the long service payment
obligation is 6.5 years.

Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2021:

Less than a
year
—FR
HK$000
FHET

Long service payment

obligation RERBG BT 1,913

15 RBRUASFANEE (BB K

RHIRE S5 (F)

(0 RHR%KEEE(E)
RIEHEEFRESRF &L ~5E
REBEE - —F=ZA=+—HILFE
TEHS T2 2 REIRE S EERRL
751,913,000 7T °
RERS BT 2 MEFHFHE6.5
£ o
R-E-—F=A=+—B2Z2RER%
SEARKRKTF 2 TERRHB ST

Between Between
1-2 2-5 Next 5
years years years
—ZWF —ZHE T—EREH
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
2,902 9,007 10,164

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company's MPF scheme’s constituent funds.

176 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

REFEREGR - HWERARBEEE
BEFERHIMERERKGE 2 RES
g MELARBRBESEE AKEA
Rt AR MR ELE - FamR kA AT
BEEFTEIARSESREAREREER

LA
i

o o
A



16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial
position:

16

IEFERH

A ARBRHBMITENA KA ANIAE
EEMIAAEERENE - MEEREY
KR —FA R AEERIBEERA
BANRI B AR - AR MBSO R AR
TAHFBE(EEHBEEERETE) W
T

2021 2020
—E—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be #1218 A 12 U B K IE
recovered after 12 months HIBEE 70,733 66,294
Deferred income tax liabilities to be A 12 (8 AR ENRELE
settled after 12 months HIEAE (33,424) (29,410)
37,309 36,884

Movements in net deferred income tax assets are as follows:

FRLERIREE 2 EFINT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Beginning of the year FNEEER 36,884 29,070
Deferred taxation credited to the e BRIk
consolidated income statement RIERTE (KI7E26)

(Note 26) 588 7,864

Exchange differences [E = %8 (163) (50)

End of the year FREES 37,309 36,884
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 IEEBIIE (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEEZFRNELEHIBEEERABCE
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (RR— BT AhARE R 2 AR 8HAT)
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: N
Deferred income tax assets: RIEBRIEEE
Decelerated tax Lease liabilities,
depreciation Tax losses provision and others Total
WEBIERE HE HEEE BEREM Fob]
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
B ZTZTF ZT--F CZEZTF EBE--F ZTZTF —B--HF CZITZTF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

Beginning of the year F#4#% 9,617 9,673 34,565 23,150 444,623 441,027 488,805 473,850
Credited/(charged) — EfAEREA
to the consolidated ~ #1% /(5 A)

income statement 5,218 (56) 31,680 11,415 (353,001) 6,854 (316,103) 18,213

Exchange differences & X Z=%8 - - - - 5,479 (3,258) 5.479 (3,258)

End of the year FRES 14,835 9,617 66,245 34,565 97,101 444,623 178,181 488,805
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EERIE (&)

Deferred income tax liabilities: EALERIEEE -

Accelerated tax

depreciation Provision Right-of-use assets Total
mEHETE B EREEE e
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--fF —ZT-TF B T-TFE ZB--§ "T-TF ZB--F "—ZT-ITF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET T FET THET FET THET
Beginning of the year F#45#% 66,058 52,733 - = 385,863 392,047 451,921 444,780
(Credited)/charged ~ TE4r&1BE=EA
to the consolidated ~ (41B%) /ET A
income statement (679) 13,325 685 - (316,697) (2,976)  (316,691) 10,349
Exchange differences & X =% - - - - 5,642 (3,208) 5,642 (3,208)
End of the year FRER 65,379 66,058 685 - 74,808 385,863 140,872 451,921

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of
losses of approximately HK$826,370,000 (2020: HK$457,698,000).
Unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$205,568,000 (2020: HK$202,602,000) and HK$49,280,000
(2020: HK$47,208,000) will be expired up to year 2037 and 2025
respectively, while the remaining balance can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$11,478,000 (2020:
HK$7,714,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting
to HK$193,342,000 (2020: HK$124,696,000) of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. Such
amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future
to the group companies outside of the Mainland China.

EAER IR E E T E AR B IS A 2 0] i
AR PR FE SR B B3R i pL P A 88 2 Bt
BEBR R-_EBE-_—F=RA=+—
B+ 725 B 37 £ 5t #8518 49 826,370,000
BT (ZZ T4 : 457,698,000 7T )
TERIE E B H B E - 4205,568,000
B or( Z T = T F :202,602,000%8
JL) % 49,280,000 8 (=T =T F :
47,208,000 % 7T ) R HER BB 5 AR
T ER-TE_REER BT
BR AT R IR B AL S o

A B R B A A B B A R BT B EX Y
ZEZEN\F-A—HEADPRERBE
A £193,342,0008 T( T T F :
124,696,000/ 7T ) BT A FE M - I
RIER11,478,0008 T(Z T =T F :
7,714,000 70) MR IBEE - B
R A] B 2R 5 B 4a P B AT 3 LA
SN0k SENSI

AREEEARRAA] 202021 F3k
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17 Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

17

LREMNIRE

EREMNRENREOMIT :

2021 2020

:g:—ﬂi = 3 — = E'E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 - 30 days THE=+H 174,377 167,135
— 60 days =+t—Zx1tH 2,641 1,727

— 90 days 2N e =) 816 1,333
Over 90 days FEpcyA = 349 1,966
178,183 172,161

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the

EERMNRENREENR NI EEG

following currencies: & :
2021 2020
:g: —ﬂE — 3 —= E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
HK$ BIT 136,863 128,588
RMB AR 41,320 43,573
178,183 172,161
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values MR EFHREE - £ X EMNKRENK

due to their short maturities.
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18 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 18 HttENRERESER
Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued HithERIERETERF ZEBERER
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other e TERHMEE EMEMNKRIE
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB. REAERATE2HUBTREARKES

=
Bank Borrowings 19 MITERK
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET F&T
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank borrowings RHIRITE N 1,099,433 -
Less: Current portion included A FTAREBE BNEAE S
in current liabilities (100,000) —
999,433 -
Current RE
Short-term bank borrowings RERITER 80,000 -

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year 1A
Between 1 and 2 years 122FR
Between 2 and 5 years 2ESFR

N-_E-_—F=H=+—H ' ' A&£EEE
BEZRITEFET :

2021 2020
—F-—F —EoTfF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FExT FET

180,000 =
100,000 =
899,433 =

1,179,433 =

ARLEBAFRAT 202021 3% 181
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Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the corporate
guarantees provided by the Company. In addition, the Group
is required to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by the banks.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings

19

RITERK(H)

REE 2 ROTERHAARREZ AT
BRIEAEA o W REBAGTR
1IHE 2 2 F o IRHIR4) -

RITERZEREREAHERS

EREENREE SR AEERITESRE

by type and currency is as follows: EEZTAT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHEIT
HK$ at floating rates PETT - AR 1,179,433 =
As at 31 March 2021, the effective interest rate of the bank RZZE-_—F=RA=+—0 " #17TE
borrowings was 1.0% per annum (2020: Not applicable). LEBRFEMNERI0%(ZZEZ ¢
HA) -

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total banking facilities
amounting to HK$2,219,564,000 (2020: HK$945,000,000) of which
HK$1,331,235,000 were utilised (2020: HK$159,462,000). As at 31
March 2021, the Group had available unutilised banking facilities of
HK$888,329,000 (2020: HK$785,538,000).
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SRITEE4R%R1E2,219,564,000 7% T
(—Z — =4 :945,000,000&7T) » &
#1,331,235,0008 (=T = iﬁi
159,462,000 L) B EEFHA - RZFT
——HZA=+—H A£EEFAUHH
Z$R1T12E'%8/5888,329,0008 L (- &
— =% :785,538,0007T) °
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20 Share Capital 20 B
2021 2020
:'%E:—$ —7 —= $
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
share value share value
g S¢=| HE R E EfE
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
FR FET Fhg FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10  E@EIREFRE(E
each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end of the year F#)EF K54 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE
Beginning of the year FHEE 585,704 58,570 585,543 58,554
Shares issued under share *ETJ‘EM‘HH%HQJ
option scheme (Note 32) BT (FisE32) - - 161 16
End of the year FREH 585,704 58,570 585,704 58,570
During the year, no shares were issued pursuant to the Share Option FR - BIERGORANR R 2R, BAER
Scheme of the Company. 81517 -
During the year ended 31 March 2020, 161,000 shares of Bz ZFE=A=+—HILFE -
HK$0.10 each were issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme 161,000J‘]xﬂx@1§7%0 1078 7T Z B& 1n
of the Company and total proceeds less expenses amounting to BARRB 2 RN BARERT 813217 - FTIERK
HK$3,601,000 were provided to the Group with working capital. 42 KR 7 X 2 3,601,000% 7T A 1E & A

%?E{ /)lb@]ﬁ@ °

During the year, the Group purchased 1,542,055 (2020: 1,686, 126) FA- AEBEEBEKD ZBEX
of its own shares through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme FEARARMS L8 51,542,055 1%
from the open market. The total amount paid to acquire these (ZE-_ZTF:168612618) HBE B
shares was approximately HK$25,480,000 (2020: HK$40,631,000) 1n - BB EZER Tﬁﬁﬁz | 5 58
and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. As at 31 March #4) /25,480,000 ;( —Z T = T F:

2021, such shares were recorded as treasury shares of the Company 40,631,000%7T) * 2 8 ﬁx?%ﬁﬁ A H
and the Group as they were not yet vested. WeRZEBE-_—F=A=+—H0 BK

Tﬁréﬁiﬁm% ZEBMERARE R
SEHNEFBRAR
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21 Reserves 21 f#E
Share  Shares held
Capital ~ Exchange based  forshare  Statutory
Share  Redemption translation compensation award reserve
premium reserve reserve Capital ~ Investment reserve scheme #E@%  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
g% A reserve reserve  MRBRE  ROKWHE (note1) surplus reseve  earnings Total
Ry b fHERE EAGE RERE  WHEER  NER (Biati) LEE fhERRE RERH a

HKSO00 HKSOO0  HKSUO0  KKSOO0  HKSUOD  HKSORD  HKSUDD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOO
7R 77 FER FER FER 723 723 723 723 7T 7ET FET

Asat 1 April 2020 R-2-3EMA-A 621,122 152,034 16,375 1,019 650 26,304 (146,01) 31,158 80,696 140204 1664542 2,608,163
Fair value loss on financil RATEIIAE 2T
asselsatfanaluethough A 4BEES

other comprehensieincome ~ AFERE - - = = (4,082) = = = = = = (4.082)
Remeasurement of retirement ¥ ERITEEAER

benefitliabilties and provision R £ R

forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - 24,887 24,881
Transfer to statutory resenves ~ EATEEGHE - - - - - - - 1929 - - (1,929) -
Employee share award ESRAER

scheme-value of employee ~~ #+8/- EERHER

services - - - - - 313 - - - - - 313
Vesting of shares of share award 3 28t SR 58

scheme - - - - - (23,287) 30,557 - - - (7.210) -
Bchange diferences arisng~—~ EEINIER T2

from translation of foreign EXEE

subsidiaries - - 0149 - - - - - - - - 3,49
Profitattrbutable toequity  ARERERB AR

holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 359,130 359,130
Purchase of shares BARMR - - - - - - (25,480) - - - - (25,480)
Dividends k& - - - - - - - - - - (57,723) (57,723)

Balanceasat 31 March 2001 WZE=-%
ZR=t-BEH 621,122 152,034 48624 2,019 (3432) 36,140 (140,944) 33,087 80,696 140204 1981637 2,970,267
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21 Reserves (Continued) 21 f#E(E|E)
Share ~ Shares held
Capital Exchange based for share Statutory
Share  Redemption  translation compensation award Teserve
premium Teserve Teserve Capital ~ Investment Teserve scheme iERE  Contrbuted  Revaluation Retained
B bl resenve eseve  WRIORA  ROREHE (notei) surplus fesene eannings Total

RiERE  WORE  FEER  AMBRE  REBR  oBeRBE  READ ()  E9BR  GERE et it
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 #5000 3000 HS000
Fén Fén V7.7 7T 723 77 773 7 77 7 i Fén

Asat 1 April 2019 R-F-NERA-A 616,811 152,034 41,668 1,019 53719 5311 (133,020 2213 80,69 140224 2,090219 3,116,080
Proceeds from shareissued ~ EE{RAHEHE 358 - - - - = = = = = = 358
Fair value loss on financil assets  FAFEFIAEH

atfarvavethoughother ~~ 2EHAZEREE

comprehensive income WATESE = = = = (53,069) = = = = = = (53,069)
Remeasurement of retirement ¥ ERITEEAER

benefitliabilties and provision R £ R

forlong senvice payments - - - B - - - - - - 779 779
Transfer to statutory resenves ~ EATEEGHE = - - - - - - 3885 - = (3,885) =
Employee share award ESRAER:E

scheme-value of employee - EERHERE

Services - - - - - 23,845 - - - - - 23,845

Release of share-based R RnSE
compensation reserve HARGZ M kR
o share premium upon EARNEE

exercise of share options 126 = = = = (726) - = = = = =
Transfer upon lapse of share R SR8

options - - - B - (555) - - - - 555 -
Vesting of shares of share award 3 28t SR 58

scheme - - - B - (21,637) 21630 - - - (5,993) -

Bchange diferences arisng~—~ EEIIBRR
from translation of foreign LEREE

subsidiaries - - (25,293) B - - - - - - - (25.293)
Proftattrbutable toequity ~ ARFRERBA

holders of the Company L = = - - - - - - - - 73,634 73,634
Purchase of shares BARMR - - - - - - (40,631) - - - = (40,631)
Dividends bt - - - B - - - - - - (487213) 487.213)

Balanceasat 31 March 2000 W=5-%%
ZA=t-BEH 621,122 152,034 16,375 21,019 650 26,304 (146,021) 31,158 80,696 140,224 1,664,542 2,608,163
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21 Reserves (Continued)

(i) Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit
to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

21 B (&)

(i

BEFBEBBEERRD - P
NAEIBERRNFE RN 10% 2Bt
ZafFBEe BEERRESEN
RAFEMEARZ50% Bl - &FE
FESKEBEAERIEEZRATAR
HiH R T BT R I8 1A R 2 w1
BR - ZFEHEREAERFR
NAIFEMERZ 25% KF o

22 Revenue 22 WA
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Sales of food and beverages HERY R m 6,627,557 7,877,944
Rental income AU A 38,341 47,737
Management and service fee income BB MR E WA 5,400 6,127
Sundry income FIBUA 42,957 31,289
6,714,255 7,963,097
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23 Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, 23 HftWm AR HMF(FE)

Net 22 Al
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Dividend income from listed equity iR E R BB A

investments 3,572 12,246
Fair value loss on investment properties & & #¥ M)A FEEE (FizE7)

(Note 7) (42,900) (42,400)
Loss on disposal of other property, plant HEE A - BE N REFER

and equipment, net (12,840) (19,072)
Impairment loss of property, plant M - BB REREREESE (Fi6)

and equipment (Note 6) (2,705) (15,254)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ~ {EAEEE 2 REEE (F:E6)

(Note 6) (23,680) (40,580)
Government subsidies (Note a) B E B (KisEa) 638,868 60,289
Others A 696 4,231

561,011 (40,540)

(@  These primarily represented government subsidies in relation (@ ZEREBEXEHBFEFNTHRR
to the COVID-19 pandemic which included subsidies of BRETHEREESAFTE
HK$486,767,000 under the Employment Support Scheme R mITmER 2B B
(2020: Nil) and other subsidies of HK$135,971,000 (2020: BIETRME]FE T EMMA
HK$57,240,000) granted under the Anti-Epidemic Fund of 486,767,000 B T (Z T T F :

the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 7 ) R H A48k 4 135,971,000 %
Region. t(=ZF = F 4 : 57,240,000/%

TT) °
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24 Expenses by Nature 24 EMESENEHR

BREEHEXRARITHRERNER DN

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows: T
2021 2020
— 25 —F-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of raw materials and packing R R B 2,008,142 2,258,184
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) #EfZ& & #4 (£ 8) 194 408
Depreciation expenses (Note 6) HreEfs (MizE6)
— property, plant and equipment - % - BERFEE 351,182 357,784
— leasehold land and land use rights - D BEERAEEENEE T
classified as right-of-use assets R - Hbfsh FARE 14,252 14,243
— right-of-use assets — properties - FREAE -M* 733,714 861,782
Expenses relating to leases of BHELATEREENFX
— short-term leases - HIEE 33,043 22,737
— variable lease payments not included - AJE#HERNH - T BIEHE&EE
lease liabilities 36,349 49,970
Gain on modification and termination ~ FAE& &) K2 EF

of leases (32,228) -
Exchange losses, net bE i 5B R 1,976 512
Employee benefit expenses (excluding 1B EEFIFI S (T BIEARG

share-based compensation expenses) A ) (Bf7E 29)

(Note 29) 2,332,973 2,672,600
Share-based compensation expenses LARAD 2B (B 5E29)

(Note 29) 33,123 23,845
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT N & 3,611 4,019
Electricity, water and gas BB KBRERE 316,237 385,717
Advertising HESH 88,639 71,871
Reversal of loss allowance on trade S EIWARIE 2 B O E1E

receivables (Note 13) B (Mi5E13) (52) (307)
Sanitation BERE 120,973 124,973
Repairs & maintenance HERREE 97,322 105,177
Other expenses HiEBH 662,236 760,344

6,801,686 7,713,859
Representing: &k -
Cost of sales SHEKA 6,339,067 7,232,445
Administrative expenses THE A 462,619 481,414
6,801,686 7,713,859
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Finance Costs, Net

25 BIEEERA

2021 2020

:g:—qﬁ = 7 — = E'E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Finance income BITEIA 8,125 16,098
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEB BN BKA (84,869) (110,538)
Finance cost on bank borrowings IRITERM B ISR A (6,290) =
Finance costs, net BITSF AR (83,034) (94,440)

Income Tax Expense 26 FTBEBIEA

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year RAARRARERREBHE_ST=H1
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate Fo BAMNEUNDIRBFAMETER

of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for Fiom FAK B R165% ( — T T F:

the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

16.5% ) Te 4 < JBINGF| 2 T Bl
BENGTERBS IR AEB KL
HERZIBITHETE -

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income e BRRATR 2 HIBERE -
statement represents:
2021 2020
—EC-—F T TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Current income tax: BNEATRIA -
- Hong Kong profits tax - BENEH 24,643 35,210
— PRC taxation — P B A F I 13,803 13,072
Deferred income tax relating to the ERERELRED
origination and reversal of temporary W R IR IR
differences (588) (7,864)
Over provision in prior years BEFEREHRE (7,862) (546)
29,996 39,872
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26 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 26 FISHEA (&)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the 255 B 5 BARR A Al A A 2 B 18 B RS R

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong RAEBZHREMAE  BRPIGBLER
Kong as follows: LU

2021 2020

:g:_fﬁ = 7 — = E'E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Profit before income tax BRI ATE A 390,546 114,258

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  #&#{ =X 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) (Z2ZZF 1 16.5%) ;T EMFIE 64,440 18,853
Effect of different taxation rates E b [Em DRI 2 52

in other territories 5,053 (1,583)
Income not subject to taxation BIARI 2 WA (115,125) (19,919
Expenses not deductible for taxation TR HIBE A & A

purposes 20,332 27,598
Reversal of previously recognised 0] P AR

temporary difference TRER 1,846 339
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ B 61,408 15,714
Over provision in prior years BEFERERER (7,862) (546)
Others Hith (96) (584)
Taxation charge HIESZ 29,996 39,872
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27 Dividends 27 BRE
2021 2020
:g:_fﬁ = 7 — = E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK10 cents /JL'EEF'HEHQ% B R 10810
(2020: HK19 cents) per ordinary share ZEZTFE 1954) 58,570 111,284
Final dividend, proposed, of HK28 cents ZiEAHIILE « FIEREZ 28511
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share T FF ) 163,997 =
222,567 111,284
A final dividend of HK28 cents (FY2019/20: Nil) per ordinary share in EEpREE T —F=A=1+—H
respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 was proposed. Such final FFEERERARESRE AR 28E
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the upcoming W((ZFB—h/ZTFE : &) - ZKH
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect REBEFRRNEERREFAE L4
this dividend payable. o FAMEE - ZEUBmARIL &R
SERERIAR S, o
28 Earnings Per Share 28 BREF
(@) Basic (a) EXR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EBRERENTIRA D FIRERE AR
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted EEMRAFRBBITT AR (TEER
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding NRIFMR BT EIEE 2 EiBAR) 2 N
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme. R B2 BERGE -
2021 2020
:g:_fﬁ — 7 — E'E
Profit attributable to equity holders NARIRIERE AR (FAT)
of the Company (HK$'000) 359,130 73,634
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 BAR 2 In4EF19E (FEAL)
shares in issue (‘000) 579,551 580,095
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) &REAGF (FET) HK$0.62 % T HK$0.13/87T
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28 Earnings Per Share (Continued) 28

(b) Diluted

(b)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding

the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share

award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary

shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the

share options and shares under the share award scheme.

BRI (8)

g
FREEEN I RBRIESTRITZE
BENEF OB FRAERIT 2 EBR
(TEEARRRRERD RESBELN
BB Z P BEH BEMTE -
2P R AR D B K B £ 2B St 8RO AX
DHAEHETE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
Profit attributable to equity holders RNARIRIERE AR (FAT)
of the Company (HK$'000) 359,130 73,634
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 BAR 2 Mg F19E (FEAL)
shares in issue (‘000) 579,551 580,095
Adjustment for share award scheme A1 B2 =t &l SR &N
('000) (FEf) 2,138 1,566
581,689 581,661
Diluted earnings per share TRRHEE A
(HK$ per share) (T TT) HK$0.62 7 7t HK$0.13 7T
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses 29 EERFMAX

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FAMESRABAZOT
2021 2020
:g:_qi = 3 — = E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances T& - & K2ERh 2,128,214 2,440,191
Discretionary bonuses FEE FEFEAL 112,403 124,572

Pension costs BERAR A

— Defined contribution plans - ATHAEE 87,579 102,886
— Defined benefit plan (Note 15) - REBAEE (7 15) 1,707 2,164
— Long service payments (Note 15) - RER® 2 (5 15) 3,070 2,787

Employee benefit expense (excluding B E@AIFx<

share-based compensation expenses) (TBIEURD S HEE) 2,332,973 2,672,600
Share-based compensation expenses LARR 5 2 A< B2 33,123 23,845
Employee benefit expenses EERAFHXE 2,366,096 2,696,445
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30 Benefits and interests of directors

30

(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

Listing Rules)
(a)

Directors’ emoluments

(a)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March

2021 is set out below:

Name of director £
Non-executive directors FHIEE
MrLoHoi Kwong, Sunny ~ ERth4

Chairman E

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita = T
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Rt %4
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ #FEER4
Independent non-executie BV TEE
drectors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ EEif4
MrliKwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEIE%4
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S35 4
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Abert  ER#I%E
Erecutive directors HiEZE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEArs
Chief Executive Officer BEHITE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRELE
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Fees
ok
HKS'000
FEn

1,180

300
300
300

400
400
400
400

Salaries,
allowances
and
benefits in
kind

4 2ER
)
HKS'000
&7

4,800
2,160

Discretionary
bonuses
FEERA
HKS000
FEn

2919
1,080

Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
ExtEie
HE 5
HKS'000
FiEn

EENNENER (RBEE
(R AP (5622 F) 5 383
(2R (BKBEESANGEE

B RAN(F622GE) REE

FHRAIFEER)
EEME
BE-_Z-_—F=ZA=1+—HIFERN
EESHMEEINT :
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs
of the
Company
orits
subsidiary
Share-based  undertaking
compensation EHES
benefits ~ HEEALF
RGN SHKELE
HeRRl BEmB#e
Sub-total (Notei) EHttRiEZf Total
gt (i)  AEkzMe Ex
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
F&r FEr & &
1,180 - - 1,180
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
1181 1,053 - 8,840
3,308 376 - 3,684
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30 ESHNAENER (KEBEEE
(R AP (5622 F) 5 383
(2R (BKBEESANGEE
B RAN(F622GE) REE
EHRAEERER) (&)

30 Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=BNE ()
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March HE-ZT-_TF=-A=+—HILEFEHN
2020 is set out below: BESMHEHINWT :
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs
of the
Company
orits
subsidiary
Salaries, Share-Dased  undertaking
allowances Employer's compensation Bz
and contribution benefits ~ FHERALT
benefits in 0 pension RS GENBLE
kind  Discretionary scheme MeRhl  EhmiEfte
fees &% ZHER bonuses  [EXHIE(S Sub-total (Notei) EmbiRmESf Total
Name of director B4 o Bl HEREA TRl Gt (&) SEkeme ]
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 00,
AL AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Non-executive directors FHIEE
MrloHoiKwong, Sunny — BEtEE 1,180 = = = 1,180 = = 1,180
Chairman E
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEENT 300 = = = 300 = - 300
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael TRt %4 300 - - - 300 - = 300
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel TRELE 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Indepencent non-executie  EUHHEE
directors
Mr Choi Noai Min, Michael  £8EiR %4 400 = = = 400 = = 400
MrliKwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEIZ%H 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Ly~ SI3E%4 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEMLE 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Erecutive directors HEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEAsE
Chief Executive Officer BEHE 50 4800 1,440 18 6,308 1429 - 1737
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRELE 50 2,160 1,560 18 3,788 510 - 4298
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(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

..,T/‘Ezli'ﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁnf

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Note:

(i) The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2020:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2020: Nil).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EENNENER (RBEE
(R AP (5622 F) 5 383
R (2R (HMEEENTE
B RAN(F622GE) REE
EHRAEERER) (&)

=HEME (&)

FRAEEFHERREAHNE -

fiaE -

0 ROXMHMSERERE E AR
¥ TRAREERHABOHES - RER
W19 B0 R R R IR IR 19 0 SR 1 By
25 -

ERRAESERN

MEEMEEHEERRASENB DL
XEBmiEH Zﬁmﬁ&ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬂﬂl

ZEAREEN(ZFE_FF : &) -
EEHBERN
FABMEREA R IERERBE RTINS

B (ZF_FTF : §)-

BRENEERBMEE=TX
HHRE
BERE EEARD R EFRURBM

MZESENAEZEENR(ZEE
Fm|E)o

EHEUEE ZEEENSE
ZENRBEERASTAZE
FCEERREMBRG 2ER

FAMENES - ZFEFNHXITEE
LEAEERARBAZER  BEEFR
HitR 5 (ZF_FF : &) °
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Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2020: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include one (2020: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2020: four) individual
during the year are as follows:

30

()

(9)

EENNENER (RBEE
(R AP (5622 F) 5 383
(2R (BKBEESANGEE
B RAN(F622GE) REE
EHRAEERER) (&)

EERRS  ZHIEHNE
RfEm
REERE B R FREMESRE - HiE
ARARESEARRSREEHZE
ARG BHRENTFEERRERE
EREARER (—E_FF @) -

hEmeHMAL
REEREEALERSHMALEIE
—H(ZTFF: —R)EF HME
E&#NHIE30@) c ES#ME(ZE-F
FOB) ATRARFERY 2B 0
I

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Basic salaries, gratuities and K5 - A& R E 2Rk
other allowances 14,450 14,396
Discretionary bonuses JEE EAEAT 7.462 8,776
Contributions to pension schemes RN FH B 72 72
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 2 A5 B2 1,972 2,336
23,956 25,580

ARBEEBFR AR 202021 F3;
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30 Benefits and interests of directors 30
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

(9)

(h)

(i)

Listing Rules) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (9)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

3,500,001 77T = 4,000,000 78 7T
4,500,001 7T 5,000,000 77T
5,000,001 72 5,500,000 7T
6,000,001 77T = 6,500,000 %8 7T
6,500,001 77T 7,000,000 %8 7T
7,000,001 7= 7,500,000 78 70
8,000,001 77T = 8,500,000%8 7T

EENNENER (RBEE
(R AP (5622 F) 5 383
(2R (BKBEESANGEE
B RAN(F622GE) REE
EHRAEERER) (&)

hERSHMAL (E)
Bl 2 AR -

Number of individuals

AB

2021 2020
—E--F —EB_BfF
1 -

- 1

- 1

1 -

1 -

1 1

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss (h)
of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid
individuals during the year.

Senior management’s emoluments by band (i)

The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell

within the following bands:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

3,000,001 # 7T % 3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 # 7T % 4,000,000 7 7T
4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000 /87T
5,000,001 7T % 5,500,000 % 7T
6,000,001 # 7T % 6,500,000 7 7T
6,500,001 # 7T % 7,000,000 7 7T
7,000,001 # 7T % 7,500,000 7 7T
8,000,001 #7T % 8,500,000 7 7T

ENEANEEIALRSFMALE
S R e I AR B 2 8
SRR AT -
SNEEAEHENEGE
BRERAE (TREES) 2 HME
T

Number of individuals

A

2021 2020
—E—fF —E-FF
1 —

1 1

- 1

- 1

1 —

1 —

1 1
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 FERETREKRMEE
Cash Flows
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income taxto  (a) BRBIAVGFEEEEE4E 2 FIR
net cash generated from operations THER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax Br B A A 390,546 114,258
Adjustments for: HE
— Finance income - BRI A (8,125) (16,098)
— Finance cost of lease liabilities -HEaBEPBKA 84,869 110,538
— Finance cost on bank borrowings — RITEF KA 6,290 =
— Depreciation of property, plant - ff@% R REEITE
and equipment 351,182 357,784
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - EREEEZINE 733,714 861,782
— Amortisation of right-of-use assets - EREEE -HETIHR
— leasehold land and land use rights T R 2 8 14,252 14,243
— Amortisation of intangible assets - BB EEH 194 408
— Fair value loss on investment properties — & W% 2 N\ FEETE 42,900 42,400
— Net loss on disposal of other property, - HEEMYIZE - BE k&2 FEIE
plant and equipment 12,840 19,072
— Gain on modification and termination - FHE & H) & 4K 1 2 Was
of leases (32,228) (3,480)
— Reversal of loss allowance - eREECEEEE
on financial assets B (52) (307)
— Share-based compensation expenses  — LARZ(D 2~ B & 33,123 23,845
— Dividend income from listed - EiEREMA
investments (3,572) (12,246)
— Impairment loss of property, plant - M - BEREREREBE
and equipment 2,705 15,254
— Impairment loss of right-of-use assets - {F# FRHEEE 2 FIEEE 23,680 40,580
Operating profit before working RBNE & F B2 2 E R
capital changes 1,652,318 1,568,033
Changes in working capital: RBESEE
— Inventories -FE 25,702 (19,301)
— Prepayments and deposits - BRFIERIZE 24,201 22,817
— Trade and other receivables - EERHAMEWARIE 53,113 (19,362)
— Trade payables - EEEARIE 6,022 (47,549)
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities — — Hh fE (< BRIE K fE =+ & F (34,822) 27,022
— Retirement benefit assets and provision - iER& @A EE KL KRGS B
for long service payments (4,150) (2,368)
Net cash generated from operations EEEEZFRS 1,722,384 1,529,292

AREEEARRAA] 202021 F3k
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREeBRERERKE (&)

Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) HLKEBREREXANHEY

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ¥ BERRBRERERE
equipment comprise:
2021 2020
— B —T T
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Net book amounts BREDFE 14,579 20,366
Net loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWZE - WE K& 2 FEE
and equipment (12,840) (19,072)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant &% - BE KRBTSR
and equipment 1,739 1,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 FEBREREBRMET (F)
Cash Flows (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () B#Z=ZZ=—-F=ZHF=+—H

financing activities for the year ended TFEERMETBELENEEY
31 March 2021 iR
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HEAS RITER #et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2019 R-E—hFMNHA—H 2,791,129 = 2,791,129
Additions = 697,945 - 697,945
Cash flows: WEmE
— Payment of lease liabilities -YNHEEAE (935,542) = (935,542)
Finance cost BTSN 110,538 = 110,538
Termination of leases RIEHE (43,388) - (43,388)
Exchange difference [E 5 =58 (20,618) = (20,618)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZFE-_ZEF=A=+—H 2,600,064 - 2,600,064
As at 1 April 2020 ANZFE-_TFOMA—H 2,600,064 - 2,600,064
Additions NE 359,524 - 359,524
Cash flows: Iﬁfﬁmu% :
— Proceeds from bank borrowings - RITEFRZFIBR - 1,179,254 1,179,254
— Payment of lease liabilities -YNHEEAE (801,979) = (801,979)
— Interest paid - BFHE — (6,111) (6,111)
Finance cost BTSN 84,869 6,290 91,159
Modification and termination of leases A& & &) 4R | (219,955) - (219,955)
Exchange difference M ERR 27,548 - 27,548
As at 31 March 2021 R—E-_—F=A=+—H 2,050,071 1,179,433 3,229,504

ARBEEBFR AR 202021 F3;
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme

Share Options

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
24 September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company may grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Company had granted options to certain employees of the
Group (including executive directors of the Company) pursuant to
the 2003 Scheme. The 2003 Scheme expired on 24 September 2013
and the Group has stopped granting share options under the 2003
Scheme since then.

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing
of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
No share options had been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption up to 31 March 2021.

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise price in
relation to each option was determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, but in any event would not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day or (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. The exercisable period and the vesting
period of the options were also determined by the Board of Directors
and the options shall expire at the end of a 5-year period after the
options become exercisable save that such period shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the 2003 Scheme.
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SEERHBROBEARBELRAR 2T
A - AR E) % 2003 5HEIR H A% (0 B
BTYAEEETEE(BEARTHNTT
EE) 20035TEIER = —=F 1A
“tHRIHER - Bt - ARBEE
1E#2 2003 5T 8135 T AR (0 BfE -

RARRIER-_E—Z—FNLAT+—8@
BRFRBREM—IBRMDBAERE
(1201251 &11) - IR¥E2012518) - £F
BAREGRRGEHRTE  mNeE%
SEERDRMDPEURBRRGT LR
IR o B20125tBIIRMURE_T ——5F
ZA=+—HALL  UWEERZTEED
EfRI AR {7 HARE ©

IBA% 2003 5T 8 I 2 (EAIRR (A HARE - H
TEEBRARARZESZRRTE - BEMAE
ATAELROBELE A (EARSAH)
RARIRBEBBH T HRERF
oo W B Sk (i) 2R E L AR AER
SAARRBRORE BB XS HRE
TETE 2 FHUTE K (i) AR BIARDE
B UEeERE - ROHEEITHER
kEBHNMBAESRRTE - BRHOBER
AJfT{E 2 BB A F EM A AT BB R
#2003 ETEIRIER E R EEZ M 2 B
AT FERRA -



32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S o B 05 e e B

Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Options (Continued)
As at 31 March 2021, there were no outstanding options granted
under the 2003 Scheme.

There were no movements in share options during the year ended
31 March 2021.

Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2020
are as follows:

32 RPN ERBE (F)

IR0 ERRE (48)
N-ZE-—F=A=+—0H - #HEEE
2003 5121 B M AR T RO A% (7D BRHE o

BE-S-—G=A=1—AL%E
7 - RO IRELRED) -

HE_ZT _TF-_A=+—HBItFE
A - BADERRE Z EBIFRIT ¢

Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
iR e i@ AR &F ffi X ExEs
HKS
AT
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22310 255,000 = (161,000) (94,000) =
Z2-EETACTNR ZB-—§=A=T-BEZECFEZA=A
255,000 - (161,000) (94,000) -

There were no outstanding exercisable options as at 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil). No share options were exercised during the year so there
was no related weighted average share price for exercise of the
options during the year (2020: HK$25.18).

Share Award Scheme

On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years
from the date of adoption.

R-Z-_—F=ZA=+—8 REHX%
TEMR FITERNDEE(ZEFF -
) o AR FABTER, BT - &
F R EITE R B 2 H8 R hniE T3
RE(ZZ=ZFF : 25.1887L) °

IR 10 22 Bt 2
R-ZZE—=FN\A-++tH KRFE
ERRE R —IBAR () B AT 8 ([ R
MDEEEET Rl K[ %518l - BRIERTT
BUBSIERT » 21211 B #1408 HARE St
THFARFBEIRAEBR °

ARBEEHR AR 2020/21 F
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 I 13 5 # & B 10 28 B 5+ &l
(Continued) (&)
Share Award Scheme (Continued) IR 1p 8 BhEt &l (48)
During the year, 1,615,542 (2020: 1,202,289) restricted shares (Note F RN 16158R2K(ZF = F F:
b) and 400,136 (2020: 3,273,474) performance shares (Note c) were 1,202,289 1% ) BR #Il M ;& 15 (M 5Eb) &
granted to selected participants pursuant to the Scheme. Details of 400,136 % ( = & = & £ : 3,273,474
the restricted shares and performance shares awarded under the B) &G (K sEc) BERIBEZ T 811%
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows: TREEREE HE_T-_—F=H
=T+—BIEFE  BEZTERLAR
AR D R EER D FHITANT
Number of shares
Ri&E
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2020 during during during 2021
Date of grant pershare R-B-FF the year the year theyear MW=F=—-%  Vesting period
RAAH SRAVE mA-A FRRH EREE ERx% =ZA=t-B BEH
HKS
V-8
(Note a)
(R a)
317712017 236 276,151 - (275,293) (858) - 31July2018-31 July 2020 (Note b)
- \FtA=T-HE
L S o =)
317712018 18.6 828,816 - (409,170) (26,300) 393,346 31July2019-31July 2021 (Note b)
‘*'—jﬁtﬂ T-RZ
“E--ELR=t-A(Wih)
317712019 24.1 1,131,373 - (374,141) (55,852) 701,380 31 July 2020-31 July 2022 (Note b)
“TCTELA=t-RE
ZECErA=t-A(HEED)
317712019 236 3,148,628 - - (118542) 3,030,086  June 2022 (Note c)
“2-ERA (MR
317712020 14.0 - 1,615,542 (2,092) (47,958) 1,565,492 31 July 2021 -31 July 2023 (Note b)
ZEC-FrA=T-RAZE
S o e e = (L 20)
317712020 14.2 - 400,136 - (29,247) 370,889 June 2022 (Note )
“E-ZERA M
5,384,968 2,015,678  (1,060,696) (278,757) 6,061,193
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Details of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2020 are as follows:

32 ROOHERKDRES S
(%)

IR 1n 2Bt Sl (&)
RBE_T-_TF=-HA=+—HLHF
& - RIBAR 5 SRENFT 814 L &9 PR i) 14 IR
D REERMDFBHMRPAT

Number of shares
BHEA
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2019 during during during 2020
Date of grant pershare  RZE-NE the year the year theyear WZZZZF  Vesting period
RitAH BRATE MA—H ERE ENGE ERKH =ZR=+-B GEH
HKS
AT
(Note a)
(Fizka)
1/8/2016 28 269,181 - (269,181) - - 31July2017-31July 2019 (Note b)
S ) S
ZENELA=T—R(fiiEED)
317712017 236 579,327 - (285,146) (18,030) 276,151 31 July 2018 - 31 July 2020 (Note b)
B )\EtA=1T-RZ
ZEZREC A=A (D)
31712018 186 132723 - (436,480) (61,927) 828816 31 July2019-31 July 2021 (Note b)
B-NELA=T-RZE
“E--E+A=T-A(lED)
31712019 241 - 1,202,289 (1,059) (69,857) 1,131,373 31July 2020- 31 July 2022 (Note b)
“BORELA=T-RZE
ZE-ZFEA=T-A(KD)
31712019 236 - 3213474 - (124846) 3,148,628  June 2022 (Note ¢)
“2oERA (RO
2175731 4475763 (991,866) (274,660) 5,384,968

ARBEEBFR AR 202021 F3;
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, the Group purchased 1,542,055 (2020: 1,686,126)
of its own shares through the trustee of the Scheme from the
open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$25,480,000 (2020: HK$40,631,000) and has
been deducted from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2021. The
shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this Share
Award Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As
at 31 March 2021, there were 6,169,170 treasury shares (2020:
5,687,811) held through the trustee of the Scheme.

Notes:

(a) The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price per share at
the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

(b) The awarded restricted shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33%
of the awarded shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of
the grant date and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on the third
anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business
date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.
Management has revised its estimates of number of shares that are expected to
vest based on the market vesting conditions.

(e} The awarded performance shares are subject to attainment of performance targets
with reference to the Group’s performance.

(d) During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Commitments 33 A
Capital commitments (a) EBERAEE
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had the following capital R-ZZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 ' x£EZ
commitments: BRAENAT
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi = 7 — = E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Acquisition of property, plant WEEMZE - BB A%
and equipment
Authorised and contracted for EHERBEFELD 37,598 13,813
Authorised but not contracted for EHLEERERL 697,474 435,527
735,072 449,340
Committed leases not yet commenced (b) EARBIRINAERSE
As at 31 March 2021, the total future lease payments for leases R_ZE_—F=A=+—H HEA#E
committed but not yet commenced were payable as follows: B 48 R PR A E AT R (M R B %R ) FE T 28
T
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi = 7 — = E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FéET
Properties S
Within 1 year —F R HRR 7,746 5,937
After 1 year but within 5 years ZEFRFNER 23,554 20,575
31,300 26,512

RRESE
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34 Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had given guarantees totaling
approximately HK$2,229,020,000 (2020: HK$945,000,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

The Group's bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits
amounting to approximately HK$151,235,000 to the landlords and
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$159,462,000).

35 Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

34

35

B S

RZZE-_—F=A=+—H  KAaMA
M HEREEBENB AR ZRITE
BREERA £42,229,020,000 T (=
T~ T4 : 945,000,000787T) °

R-Z-_—F=A=+—0 K&£Bx
FRIBITEMAEENBRARZEER
NAFZEHERNREHEER  URE%E:
£ H#)/5151,2350008 T (—E - F
£ 159,462,000/87T) °

ARREEHE 2R
RZB=—€=A=+—B  A%KER

BT AIEGH 2 RETHE MR ARREN Z
REBEFRERLT

2021 2020

—E=-F —TETF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET T

Not later than one year —F R 37,820 38,600
Later than one year and not later than S -ZFRFAEH

five years 21,846 51,120

59,666 89,720
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36 Related Party Transactions

(@) The Group has the following significant
transactions with related party during the

(b)

36 BEEEARS

(a) FAXEEHEBEBMLEUTZ
EW G

year:
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi = 7 — = E'E
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Operating lease rentals paid to A2 EEHERS ¢
a related party:
— Tinway Investments Limited (Note) - RERERRATE () 2,400 2,400

Note:  Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita,
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited,
the trustee of a unit trust of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny being a beneficiary.
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
are Directors of the Company.

The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related
party.

Key management compensation

Mz : REREERARBHEZELZ LT BRMXE
EZHEANR—MEBEMEE(REMNE
£ e RBZ i A) Z X5 AArdley Enterprises
(PTO) Limited £ RIEH - ZBEBE R L+ - R#%
REERBRKXEEHRADRES -

LLX%B&ZKE@EE?%HM?%J_LZ

(b) TEEEBASHME

2021 2020

—E-—& ZE-THF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances M K Bh 23,570 23,516
Fees ik 100 100
Discretionary bonuses FEREEAEAL 12,001 12,952
Contributions to pension schemes RS FT B 126 126
Share-based compensation expense VAR A7 3= A< Bl & 3,742 4,675
39,539 41,369
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37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 ZXATMBMRRARREES
Reserve Movement of the Company 1)
(@) Statement of financial position of the (a) ZARARFHKARTE
Company
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—E-— —T T
=A=+—H —A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RIE AR E 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries R NGIE ¢ 1,172,075 842,218
1,503,877 1,174,020
Current assets mENE =
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 280 448
Total assets HMEE 1,504,157 1,174,468
EQUITY IR
Capital and reserves attributable  ZNA BIR%HER B A
to the equity holders FEAG AR A K (76 s
of the Company
Share capital i 58,570 58,570
Share premium 15 = (E 37(b) 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share award [ 17 £2E)ET S
scheme B 2 & 37(b) (140,944) (146,021)
Other reserves H i 37(b) 282,641 272,805
Retained earnings RE =7 37(b) 682,452 367,675
Total equity IRREAEEE 1,503,841 1,174,151
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Other creditors and accrued EfpESERIB R ETER
liabilities 316 317
Total equity and liabilities RER S BELHAEE 1,504,157 1,174,468
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37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 ZAAQATKERARKREES

Reserve Movement of the Company g (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) RATREEH
Shares
Capital  Share-based heldfor ~ Contributed
Share  redemption  compensation share award Surplus
premium reserve reserve scheme (note ) Retained
- RA%E  RO%ETE EiEs garnings Total
RtaE REfif WHERE RS (hizti) REEA B%

HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Balance as at 1 April 2020 RZE-EFMNA-RER 621,122 152,034 26,304 (146,021) 94,467 367,675 1,115,581
Employee share award scheme S MRHREE

- alue of employee services -EERBER - - 313 - - - EERVE!
Vesting shares of share award scheme R BT 1 5B - - (23287) 30557 - (7.270) -
Purchase of shares BARD = = = (25,480) = = (25,480)
Profit attributable to equity holders - AR FIRERA AR(EET

of the Company = = = = = 380,000 380,000
Dividends S - - - - - (57.953) (57953)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 R-E--FZA=1-HEs 621,122 152,034 36,140 (140,944) 94,467 682,452 1445271
Balance as at 1 April 2019 RIZ-NENA-REH 616811 152,034 25377 (133,020) 94,467 760,327 1,515,996
Employee share award scheme S22

- alue of employee services -EERBER - - 845 - - - 2,845
Release of share-based D GE DO G

compensation resene toshare e REEARREE

premium Upon exercise

of share options 726 - (726) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options Rk A& HmER = = (55) - - 555 -
Proceeds from share issued Bk fER 3,585 - - - - - 3,58
Vesting shares of share award scheme R EERTEIMRIEE - - (21637) 27,630 - (5.993) -
Purchase of shares BARD = = = (40,631) = = (40,631)
Profit attributable to equity holders AR FBERA AR (EET|

of the Company = = = = = 100,000 100,000
Dividends k& - - - - - (4g7.214) (487.214)
Balanceasat31 March 2020  W-Z-FE=f=1-H&H% 621122 152,034 26,304 (146,021) 94,467 367,675 1,115,581
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37 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(Continued)

(i) Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group
reorganisation made in prior years and represented the
difference between the value of investment in a subsidiary
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereon. Under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.
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Principal Investment Properties

Description

g

Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the First Floor,
Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16

Lai Wan Road, Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon

NED R AEZHNZ/EE 10-16 5%
BEEES 1179 —1ENS FA & C (D

Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor,
Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and 173

Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FAREES LB 167 - 171 R 1735 K IkF
47-51 5k ERARE 12 3R & EMD

2/F, Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 & 173

Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FREES LB 167 - 171 R 1735 K IkF
47-51 5 ERARE_E

Shop A of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
JURERT AR ZE 688 5% R ip B E 7 65 SR AL
E—HAME B A AN

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
JLBERE BT PUE 688 5 M ar B Z A1 65 SR AL
— A0 & B &1 C 4

Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
EEERBI18EER LA

ERBTEWE

Lot number

ih BR 4w S

New Kowloon Inland Lot

No. 5086
T LBE NI ER 5086 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETIHER 223 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZIETIHIER 223 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
BENIMIER 1262 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JUBEHIER 1262 57

Inland Lot No. 8423
I ER 8423 5%

Type
B

Shop
[EE

Shop
EE

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
[EE

Lease term

HAH

Medium-term

3

Medium-term

3

Medium-term

Gk

Medium-term

5

Medium-term

5

Long-term

=31
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
For the five years ended 31 March 2021

HE—ZT—

Five-Year Financial Summary

—F=ZA=+—RHIREFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

“E--F S 3 —E-NF —E-N\F e

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Revenue WA 6,714,255 7,963,097 8,493,883 8,427,399 7,895,262

Cost of sales HEKA (6,339,067) (7,232,445) (7,266,605) (7,385,291) (6,838,442)

Gross profit EF 375,188 730,652 1,227,278 1,042,108 1,056,820
Other income and other Hl A R

(losses)/gains, net HiF (E18) /57 561,011 (40,540) 17,687 (13,706) (23,148)

Administrative expenses THER (462,619) (481,414) (445,453) (458,819) (430,609)

Operating profit EE R 473,580 208,698 799,512 569,583 603,063

Finance (costs)/income, net S (BK) /WA (83,034) (94,440) (99,386) 11,661 9,619

Profit before income tax BREAT R A 390,546 114,258 700,126 581,244 612,682

Income tax expense S HER (29,996) (39,872) (128,456) (121,949) (108,832)

Profit for the year AERRF 360,550 74,386 571,670 459,295 503,850
Profit attributable to: [E(ERR :

Equity holders of the Company ARFREFEA 359,130 73,634 569,907 458,055 503,827

Non-controlling interests FEE R 1,420 752 1,763 1,240 23

360,550 74,386 571,670 459,295 503,850

Dividends P8 222,567 111,284 491,856 679,230 473,875

Basic earnings per share BRERRT] HK$0.62 HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79 HK$0.87

Diluted earnings per share BREERT HK$0.62 HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79 HK$0.87
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #ZR&EBEMRRE
POSITION
As at 31 March 2021 RZEBE-_—F=A=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F e 23 —Z-NE —T)N\F I 3
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HET R TR = - - 79,485 80,532
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB NERE 1,518,982 1,608,831 1,532,256 2,020,925 1,943,607
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,124,383 2,705,239 2,980,808 = =
Investment properties REME 542,700 585,600 628,000 663,300 567,700
Intangible assets B EE 1,229 1,421 1,852 4,051 4,621
Deferred income tax assets FREHBEE 70,733 66,294 56,729 30,506 26,325
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRAE - - - 147,978 229,621
Financial assets at fair value RAHESARMEE
through other comprehensive income WAZ CREE 96,951 101,033 154,102 = =
Retirement benefit assets BINGENEE 542 = = = =
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ JEREITBIT B REE 283,622 277,820 307,871 295,657 308,523
4,639,142 5,346,238 5,661,618 3,241,902 3,160,929
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories FE 234,924 260,626 241,325 234,362 240,154
Trade and other receivables ¥R E M EUERIE 102,539 166,518 165,086 191,466 97,271
Prepayments and deposits BRNFERES 51,490 60,920 38,099 121,198 116,327
Current income tax recoverable BNER AT Yk I B 7R 32,844 39,743 1,017 3,383 9,816
Bank deposits with maturity over HBE={AAZHEM
three months RIFER 21,222 1,641 21,865 22,778 22,296
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBE+EEER 2,072,512 345,072 835,537 801,240 790,017
2,515,531 874,520 1,302,929 1,374,427 1,275,881
Total assets BEE 7,154,673 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329 4,436,310
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Five-Year Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (Continued)
As at 31 March 2021

T AE B B

e M EIR R ()

R-ZE-—%=A=+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F —22%E —T-NE —T-N\F e o3
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to R RIRERE R AREMR
the equity holders of the Company eV
Share capital R 58,570 58,570 58,554 58,554 58,518
Other reserves Hiv 988,630 943,621 1,025,861 1,074,300 992,709
Retained earnings B R 1,981,637 1,664,542 2,090,219 2,436,827 2,436,150
3,028,837 2,666,733 3,174,634 3,569,681 3,487,371
Non-controlling interests JeEmE R 5,999 4,579 5,220 3,819 3,743
Total equity Mk s 3,034,836 2,671,312 3,179,854 3,573,500 3,491,120
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEHEER 33,424 29,410 27,659 33,520 31,964
Provision for long service payments RER%RE 30,629 48778 45,258 34,990 45,525
Retirement benefit liabilities RIceEAIER = 10,346 13,459 18,747 22,288
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,368,550 1,845,279 2,017,541 - -
Long-term borrowings RS 999,433 - - - -
2,432,036 1,933,813 2,103,917 87,257 99,777
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables B IE(IRIA 178,183 172,161 219,710 207,478 211,109
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HihEREBERETER 640,378 675,200 648,178 706,965 609,109
Current income tax liabilities HEREaE 7,719 13,487 39,300 41,129 25,695
Lease liabilities HEAR 681,521 754,785 773,588 - -
Current portion of long-term borrowings ~ REIEZR LS 100,000 - - - -
Short-term borrowings RHER 80,000 - - - -
1,687,801 1,615,633 1,680,776 955,572 845,913
Total liabilities wafE 4,119,837 3,549,446 3,784,693 1,042,829 945,690
Total equity and liabilities G P Tk 7,154,673 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329 4,436,810
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